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          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Good morning, and

          3  welcome to today's hearing of the Committee on

          4  Transportation.

          5                 Today the Committee will consider

          6  proposed Intro. No. 544-A, in relation to limiting

          7  the number of licensed commuter vans.

          8                 This bill would authorize an

          9  additional 50 commuter vans in addition to those

         10  currently licensed to operate in the City of New

         11  York.

         12                 Many of you are aware that our

         13  examination of the commuter van industry has been

         14  occurring over time and has not always been in

         15  agreement with the Administration.

         16                 Following the issuance by the

         17  Department of City Planning of the commuter van

         18  policy, a study in December of 1997, the

         19  Administration concluded that 917 vans were needed

         20  in the City of New York.

         21                 Since the commuter van moratorium

         22  expired in October of 1998, we have been told that

         23  146 additional commuter vans are licensed to operate

         24  by the Taxi and Limousine Commission, representing

         25  nine renewal authorizations and nine new
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          2  authorizations.

          3                 The Council strongly believes that

          4  there is a rationale basis for limiting the number

          5  of commuter vans and the areas of operation. It is

          6  important to remember that commuter van service was

          7  designed to complement, not compete, with our public

          8  transportation system, which is not only the largest

          9  in North America, but one of the best in the world.

         10                 Our Transit system was one of the few

         11  to operate on a 24-hour basis and carries

         12  approximately 6 million passengers each day. As a

         13  system which is subsidized by our tax dollars,

         14  yours, mine, and even those of commuter van

         15  operators, we believe it is worthy of some

         16  protection.

         17                 Proposed Intro. Number 544-A would

         18  authorize an additional ten commuter vans in each of

         19  the five community districts in the City of New

         20  York, the five districts that were included in

         21  proposed Intro. 544-A were the only five districts

         22  where the commuter van policy study clearly stated

         23  that the mass transit did not adequately serve the

         24  district and/or where there was a clearly identified

         25  need for commuter van service.
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          2                 We expect to hear testimony today

          3  from the Taxi and Limousine Commissioner, who is

          4  already sitting at the table, as well as the

          5  Transport Workers Union, as well as members of the

          6  public and the van operators.

          7                 I just want to make something clear.

          8  This is an issue that we have discussed for many,

          9  many years at different hearings, and we have dealt

         10  with this issue. We have authorized in the past van

         11  services. We believe that there should be a fair

         12  balance in communities where there is a need for van

         13  service. We have no problems to support it. Where

         14  they compete openly with public transportation as a

         15  public policy, we have a problem, because what we do

         16  hear each year when we do the budget, and as we are

         17  doing the budget today, we find ourselves with a

         18  problem when it comes to the Transit Authority, what

         19  do we do and how do we add more money if there is a

         20  shortfall. And there have been studies, time in and

         21  time out, where some of these van operators, some of

         22  them at least, at least the more illegal ones, have

         23  caused a problem and have undermined public

         24  transportation.

         25                 The only good thing going now is that
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          2  there is probably a little ray of hope, is that the

          3  MetroCard did take out a little of the bite of the

          4  problem, because what it does now, obviously it is a

          5  type of transportation that is catering to a

          6  particular person or group or someone who needs it

          7  from point A to point B doesn't really need to go to

          8  continue on with taking a bus or a train, a train or

          9  a bus, because otherwise they will be paying double

         10  the amount than ordinary subway riders or people who

         11  use public transportation would use and save money

         12  because of the MetroCard.

         13                 So, I understand that, and that is

         14  something that we have to consider, and that is why

         15  we did have this limit.

         16                 But the only thing is, that we have

         17  to take a serious look, and I would like to see if

         18  we could come together with some sort of compromise,

         19  which would bring everybody together to the table,

         20  understanding that we are here, it is very important

         21  to us, despite the people like to criticize it. And

         22  I get this all of the time and I want something for

         23  the record to be made clear.

         24                 People have accused this Council of

         25  being in the pockets of a particular industry,
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          2  whenever it seems that that is fit to be,

          3  particularly when the Administration or somebody

          4  wants to criticize you.

          5                 I am in particular intrigued by

          6  yesterday's article in the Post where I got accused

          7  of being in the pocket of TWU. So, let me let the

          8  secret out, TWU in my last election hadn't endorsed

          9  me, so how could I be in their pocket, if I did so

         10  much for them and such a great job. So, I am

         11  obviously not in their pocket, I believe in this.

         12                 I know this now with vendors, they

         13  accused me that I am in the pockets of vendors, they

         14  accused me of being in everybody's pocket. I would

         15  like to see some of those pockets, if you really

         16  want to be candid about it, but it is ridiculous. I

         17  think we have to stop and look at public policy

         18  rather than what this is all about, personalities.

         19  We don't want to undermine anybody's right to work.

         20                 We could understand if there is a van

         21  service operating illegally by law, I could live

         22  with that. And we also don't want to undermine

         23  public transportation.

         24                 The last thing I want to see is that

         25  terrible, the repeat of the terrible accident that
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          2  happened a few months ago right near my house on

          3  Flatbush Avenue where a person, two people were

          4  killed, if I am not mistaken, and people were hurt,

          5  and it was an illegal driver. And they are operating

          6  right in front of us. The legal operators who are

          7  operating the vans will tell you, go down Flatbush

          8  Avenue, go down in Queens, you will see people who

          9  probably have no right to be driving, are driving in

         10  vans, picking up these vans, working for some sort

         11  of company that leases to them for the day and

         12  everything else and are putting all of us in

         13  jeopardy. And that we have to address.

         14                 So, if we address the illegality

         15  part, and I think everybody can come together and

         16  say, okay, there is room for vans to operate

         17  legally, we are not competing openly with public

         18  transportation, and that is the message I want to

         19  get across.

         20                 We are not here for vans or fronting

         21  for the union. We are here for what is good for

         22  public policy and that is the record that should be

         23  made clear and that is what we should do and I hope

         24  we go in that direction.

         25                 With that I will introduce the
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          2  Commissioner, and welcome her to the hearings here.

          3                 I just wanted to tell you also, that

          4  we have quite a few people who want to testify, and

          5  I am sure that you all have a lot to say. After the

          6  Administration and the Union, we will limit it to

          7  two minutes a piece. Please keep into that

          8  timeframe. We are not going to vote on this today.

          9  We are going to take more testimony, we are going to

         10  deal with this issue. We will come up with some sort

         11  of compromised bill which will be a fair balance to

         12  everybody. Thank you very much.

         13                 Commissioner, welcome.

         14                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Good

         15  morning, Chairman Dear, Committee members. I would

         16  like to thank you for this opportunity to testify

         17  specific to the Giuliania Administration's position

         18  on Intro. 544.

         19                 At this time I would like to state

         20  that the Giuliani Administration stands adamantly

         21  opposed to this proposed bill, as it is clearly

         22  contrary to the Administration's priority of

         23  promoting customer service and that it constitutes

         24  an unlawful attempt to regulate an industry that it

         25  has no authority to regulate.
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          2                 Before I elaborate on some of the

          3  specific concerns regarding this proposed bill, it

          4  should be understood that the City Council has

          5  already challenged the Giuliani Administration with

          6  respect to licensing of commuter vans, and that

          7  challenge was unsuccessful.

          8                 The Supreme Court of the State of New

          9  York has held that the Council acted improperly and

         10  unlawfully when it placed restrictions on the TLC's

         11  right to regulate the commuter van industry.

         12                 It is also true that the state law

         13  transferring regulatory authority for commuter van

         14  services does not authorize the City to establish a

         15  maximum number of commuter vans.

         16                 It has also been made clear that the

         17  Council's attempt to limit the number of commuter

         18  vans is not based on any known environmental or

         19  traffic study, or for that matter, for any

         20  documentary evidence whatsoever, except perhaps for

         21  a commuter van study that the Council has allegedly

         22  done and continues to keep secret.

         23                 The proposed number of vans arrived

         24  at by the Council is therefore entirely arbitrary

         25  and capricious.
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          2                 As I alluded to earlier in this

          3  testimony, it is also very much the Giuliani

          4  Administration's contention, and this is an opinion

          5  which is fully shared by the Law Department, any

          6  attempt to limit the Taxi and Limousine Commission's

          7  ability to appropriately license these entrepreneurs

          8  is unlawful and it appears that it is possibly a

          9  possible contempt of court.

         10                 It should also be said at the outset

         11  that these communities served by these providers are

         12  overwhelmingly supported by the Giuliani

         13  Administration's efforts upon their behalf.

         14                 It has been the Giuliani

         15  Administration's position for as long as this issue

         16  has existed, these services have made a very

         17  positive contribution to these communities, and they

         18  have become essential components in the daily lives

         19  of their customers.

         20                 It is also important to note that

         21  many of these communities are currently underserved

         22  by public transportation.

         23                 On another level, the Giuliani

         24  Administration finds the proposal of this bill to be

         25  just plain and downright disturbing. After it has
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          2  been demonstrated to the Council by no less than the

          3  Supreme Court of the State of New York whose

          4  decision clearly was the responsibility for

          5  licensing of the commuter van industry is with the

          6  Executive Branch of Government, not the City

          7  Council, and now we find now we have this bill.

          8                 Councilman, I guess I would have to

          9  ask you, what part of the Supreme Court Decision

         10  don't you understand? In the Legislative Findings

         11  and Intent section of the proposed bill, the

         12  commuter van industry is referred to as "predatory

         13  competition." Frankly, Council members, words like

         14  "predatory", I find this reference to be highly

         15  offensive. Webster defines predatory as the word

         16  characterized by plundering, pillaging or

         17  marauding.  How could you possibly characterize

         18  these hard-working business people, who have fully

         19  demonstrated their fitness in a stringent City

         20  administered licensing process as pillagers or

         21  marauders, in essence you are demonizing

         22  entrepreneurs who have found an appropriate niche in

         23  their communities and a niche created by the lack of

         24  adequate public transportation. And they have filled

         25  it admirably.
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          2                 They have earned the loyalty and

          3  respect of their customers and they seek only to

          4  expand, as any business would, in the name of

          5  healthy competition in promoting the sign of what is

          6  a very vital economic recovery in the City of New

          7  York. It is a sure sign of this City's unprecedented

          8  economic renaissance under Mayor Giuliani that these

          9  new entrepreneurs would even choose to go into a new

         10  business, particularly meaningful within their own

         11  community.

         12                 I would also ask this Committee what

         13  empirical evidence you might have of any ridership

         14  losses are in any way attributable to the commuter

         15  van industry? While I am sure you might respond to

         16  that what you would wish is to prevent such

         17  ridership losses in the future, you must agree that

         18  the MTA has an advantage which you said previously,

         19  over such competition now, and would continue to

         20  have its advantage by virtue of the MetroCard Gold

         21  Program.

         22                 I would also like to take a quick

         23  moment to speak about the process by which these

         24  services are regulated and licensed. When the State

         25  Supreme Court's ruling, which was handed down, there
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          2  were those whose reaction was now they can open the

          3  floodgates and that this ruling would mean that

          4  thousands of vans would be on the streets of the

          5  City of New York.

          6                 This kind of reaction played to the

          7  fear that given the unobstructed ability to regulate

          8  this industry, it would quickly grow to an unwieldy

          9  number.

         10                 Council Members, absolutely nothing

         11  could be further from the truth.

         12                 The State law authorizing the

         13  regulation of the commuter van industry wisely split

         14  that authority between the Department of

         15  Transportation and the TLC.

         16                 DOT's role in this process is a

         17  crucial one, being that it must assess the

         18  community's need for the service and its ability to

         19  absorb it. It literally translates into DOT's having

         20  to carefully investigate the dynamics of the

         21  community's transportation network, and attach a

         22  specific number of vehicles to the community need,

         23  even holding hearings so that the community's voice

         24  can be heard.

         25                 But this results in, thanks to DOT's
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          2  very practical criteria, is that an applicant who

          3  may file for 40 vans may in fact based upon need

          4  only get six or eight, depending on the particular

          5  needs of that community.

          6                 The bottom line, Council members, is

          7  that this is a thoughtful process, it is a thorough

          8  process and it is one that appropriately weighs the

          9  larger issues of how commuter vans fit into the

         10  community's comprehensive transport network.

         11                 And equally appropriate, it does not

         12  consider political issues, it does not consider who

         13  is fearful of healthy competition, and that is

         14  clearly how it should be.

         15                 Councilman, I would be very happy to

         16  take any questions that you may have.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: With regard to the

         18  146, I think it is, that you approved since the

         19  moratorium, do you have a listing of where they have

         20  been approved in what areas?

         21                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Yes,

         22  we do. Do we have it with us? No, we don't. But we

         23  do have a listing and we will make it available for

         24  you.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay. And the
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          2  criteria that you went through --

          3                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: I am

          4  sorry, Councilman. Yes, it is not 146, it is 90. I

          5  don't know where you got the 146 number, but it is

          6  not correct, it is 90, and we will be happy to

          7  supply that to you.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay.

          9                 Now, with regard to the application

         10  procedure, obviously one thing you have to determine

         11  is need and in your statement you talked about us

         12  criticizing you by a secret review, as you would

         13  make reference to and an environmental review, out

         14  of the 90 that you did approve, did you do an

         15  environmental review?

         16                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: There

         17  are standards that are set in place for the

         18  licensing criteria and those standards, subject to

         19  the court ruling were held in place, and that is

         20  exactly what we did. There is a City Planning study,

         21  there is a DOT process, and the first TLC, first

         22  City Planning I should say, and then there was TLC

         23  and then there is DOT.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I understand that,

         25  but did any of them do an environmental review?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: I am

          3  not specifically sure.  I will tell you that TLC

          4  didn't. I don't believe City Planning did but I can

          5  check. I am not sure. I haven't read that study in

          6  about two years.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay, but wouldn't

          8  you think -- because I know that when we tried to

          9  authorize the more cabs on the streets, one of the

         10  things we have to raise, because we have a certain

         11  point that we have to bid, we would have to go

         12  through an environmental review. Would you think

         13  that you would have to go for an environmental

         14  review any time you do any type of procedure like

         15  this?

         16                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: I am

         17  really not even sure specifically what the question

         18  is.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Do you need an

         20  environmental review to approve additional routes

         21  for van services?

         22                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: It is

         23  my believe that I don't think that we do; however,

         24  since this legislation is taking such a quantum leap

         25  in the other direction, one would assume that you
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          2  have done that on an environmental impact, et

          3  cetera.

          4                 However, we have never seen such a

          5  study. And we do understand that there is the City

          6  Council study about the number of vans. We have

          7  never been privy to that study. I believe you have a

          8  copy of the City Planning, we have never been privy

          9  to yours, Councilman, and we would really like to

         10  see it.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: This isn't about

         12  the quantum leap. We didn't take the quantum leap,

         13  the City was the one that recommended nine out of

         14  50. We are scaling back, so we are just recommending

         15  an additional 50 to what exists at the present time.

         16                 So, I would hope, and with your

         17  attorney sitting at the table, could you check out,

         18  because the question is do you need an environmental

         19  review for any additional routes that you would

         20  approve before you proceed?

         21                 And by the way, let's make a

         22  clarification also, that is one thing I would like

         23  to get an answer to that legal answer, do we need an

         24  environmental review? I don't know if you would have

         25  to give the answer or City Planning or your Corp
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          2  Counsel to let us know, but I have an official

          3  question, do you need an environmental review for

          4  anything you would approve for the future?

          5                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Well,

          6  Council member, we will research it immediately and

          7  we will also work with Corp Counsel and we will get

          8  an answer back to you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Just a

         10  clarification. I appreciate your remarks, and you

         11  know, that you are trying to lecture us. But, you

         12  know, I will take away -- I didn't go to law school

         13  for nothing, I guess, but I think I know something

         14  and I know how to read a decision and I don't have

         15  to be a lawyer to read and we have a few lawyers

         16  sitting around here and you also have legislators

         17  who have to legislate. You don't have to be a lawyer

         18  to legislate.

         19                 One thing is that I wanted to make

         20  something clear, you keep on referring to the

         21  Supreme Court of New York State. It is the lowest

         22  court, you have a civil court, but it is the first

         23  court in New York State. There are two other courts

         24  that you still can go to. And in fact, the City

         25  Council hasn't been served with a notice yet, so we
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          2  have time to appeal. And you know in cases it is

          3  just the opposite way, where the lower court has

          4  decided against you and the higher court decided

          5  against you, with you. So, we don't know what the

          6  Appellate Courts will do, we don't know what the

          7  Court of Appeals will do. We don't know anything, so

          8  let's wait. And it is not the United States Supreme

          9  Court. There is only a State Supreme Court, a judge

         10  made a decision and that is something we have to

         11  look at, and I am not so sure, because we do, under

         12  call-up, we do Land Use Call-Ups that are found to

         13  be constitutional and other things, so obviously we

         14  have the right to do it and that is something we

         15  have to consider.

         16                 And to say that, you know, we came up

         17  with an arbitrary and capricious numbers, I mean

         18  that is not fair either. This is something we try to

         19  balance, a fair balance, to be between the industry

         20  and public transportation and public policy, and it

         21  is not something that is final. If you come back and

         22  say you know what, you come up with a number,

         23  because if a number was thrown out there for

         24  discussion and it needs to be discussed, we will. We

         25  would like to come up with something.
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          2                 One thing I don't want to have, and I

          3  don't think you want that to happen also, is another

          4  tragedy like we had on Flatbush Avenue. And we would

          5  like to do away with the illegal vans, so we can

          6  have some assemblance and order on our streets.

          7                 Even the guys who are legal, they

          8  will tell you they are petrified because they are

          9  operating, they have put a lot of money into the

         10  industry, they bought vans, they are trying to do

         11  their best, trying to abide by everything, and yet

         12  the real competition is not real public

         13  transportation to them, especially now at MetroCard,

         14  the problem they have is the illegal operators who

         15  are undermining their business and causing the

         16  problems on the streets. And I will remind you that

         17  the accident that took place a few months ago on

         18  Flatbush Avenue was an illegal operator, it was not

         19  a legal operator.

         20                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: I

         21  think, Councilman, it has always been the TLC's

         22  position, as well as the Administration, that

         23  certainly during the moratorium that just really

         24  forced illegal operation. We believed that then and

         25  we believe that now. That is why we feel that
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          2  licensing the van so one can enforce appropriately

          3  is the way to go.

          4                 The other thing that I would like to

          5  say to you is that our study was primarily the City

          6  Planning study. We made copies of that available to

          7  the world. If you have a copy of a City Council

          8  study, Councilman, I would ask you respectfully, if

          9  it pertains to commuter vans which we license and

         10  regulate, respectfully why can we not see that?

         11                 I have asked for it time and time

         12  again and it has never been given to me. And quite

         13  frankly, I really don't understand that.

         14                 And let me tell you, I don't know if

         15  you are aware that the TLC has a van, commuter van

         16  committee, and we met just last week. And when I

         17  look at language like, you know, predator, I really,

         18  though I met with them and I understood everything

         19  they had to say to me last week, this bill really

         20  drove it home. They are treated like outlaws. That

         21  is unnecessary. These are business men and women who

         22  have worked very hard to establish ongoing business

         23  and very respectable businesses that are very much

         24  needed in the various communities.

         25                 So, when I look at legislation that
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          2  has words like predatory on it, I mean I don't know

          3  what you expect us to think, and I really don't know

          4  what you expect the van industry to think. It is

          5  making a horrendous statement that is very easy for

          6  all of us to read. These are hard-working men and

          7  women who have the right to make a living. They are

          8  not taking money or fares from the TWU or the MTA or

          9  anyone else, these are hard-working men and women

         10  who are really entitled to the most basic or

         11  fundamental respect.

         12                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And that is why we

         13  agree there should be a limited amount of vehicles

         14  out there and vans to do this service. But we have a

         15  problem, and I would imagine that you would also

         16  have a problem, unless you want to interpret the law

         17  differently, but wouldn't you say to me is it legal

         18  for a van to pick up at a bus stop? It is illegal,

         19  right?

         20                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Yes.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay. Do you want

         22  to, you and I, go out as we leave this office, we

         23  have this meeting, and go to Flatbush Avenue, or we

         24  don't even have to go to Flatbush Avenue, just go

         25  over the bridge on Fulton Street and watch where
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          2  vans pick up in the bus stop, and why we don't have

          3  enforcement to guard that.

          4                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Well,

          5  there is enforcement. We probably have some stats

          6  around. You know, Councilman, I don't really think

          7  that is logical. You and I clearly know there are

          8  illegal liveries, we enforce against them, so if you

          9  are trying to use the logic because if someone does

         10  something illegal, no one should be licensed to do

         11  that business, good, bad or indifferent. I just

         12  really don't understand that logic.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: We are not saying

         14  that they all should be illegal. In fact, we are

         15  saying to you we are coming up with a number that we

         16  should legalize, because we feel that we should try

         17  this out, see if it works, that it is operated

         18  properly according to law, and get rid of the

         19  illegal operators.

         20                 Again, my concern is not about the

         21  legal operators, if we didn't want to support these

         22  men and women who are working, why would we even

         23  come up with any number? We are not fighting vans,

         24  we are fighting the illegal vans. We are fighting

         25  the vans that are undermining public transportation.
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          2  And that should be of concern to you. There is a

          3  public safety problem. When you go along a bus route

          4  and you watch how a van tries to jump a bus before

          5  they get into the bus stop, so you are putting lives

          6  at risk on the bus, on the van, on the street. I

          7  mean, I would be concerned, number one. And number

          8  two, if they don't have proper insurance -- how

          9  about the family, the poor family of the young woman

         10  who was killed -- I am sorry, two people were

         11  killed, it is the young woman and the man, the

         12  driver. I went to the wake on both of them. I want

         13  to ask you something, what about the people who are

         14  hurt or killed, what about their families if there

         15  is not proper insurance and everything else? What do

         16  you say to them? That is what we are concerned

         17  about.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: You

         19  would say to them we would like to see the people

         20  who have worked so hard in this industry have the

         21  right to get licensed. And with all due respect,

         22  Councilman, I am just speaking for myself, this is

         23  tremendous movement because just a few months ago

         24  you were opposed to any additional commuter vans.

         25  Now we have a number at least to work with.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Where did you get

          3  that information from?

          4                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: All

          5  the testimony, certainly all of the questions I have

          6  been asked is why have a moratorium? Because the

          7  issue to us appears clear, that they want this issue

          8  to go away. The van operators have clearly told us,

          9  they are even afraid to further invest. You know,

         10  these vans are not inexpensive, insurance is not

         11  inexpensive, hiring drivers full-time is not

         12  inexpensive. We have the numbers here we can give

         13  you. They are approved to go to the higher numbers

         14  from the TLC and DOT, but they haven't been able to

         15  do it. I am going to quote them very closely, but

         16  the reason that they are not gearing up for this

         17  business, which may make you happy, is they told me

         18  to my face last week that they feel the City Council

         19  is out to do them in one way or the other. Because

         20  we talked about the court decision and they clearly

         21  feel, and I am sure they will testify, that where

         22  there is a will there is a way on the part of the

         23  City Council. And then again you come up with

         24  language like predator, well now you know why they

         25  think that way.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Well, it is

          3  interesting, I don't know what information you have

          4  and what you are basing your statement on about this

          5  Council as opposed to vans.

          6                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: It is

          7  not my statement, I am simply repeating what I have

          8  been told. I am sure they will be happy to repeat it

          9  to you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Just because

         11  someone repeats it, you are part of it, you don't

         12  have to hear from somebody else, a second or third

         13  hand source. You are here, you are part of it. We

         14  have approved in the past, and we have asked you, we

         15  have said we will approve in the future, and we are

         16  saying to you now, we are saying we want X number of

         17  vans, but what we want is some control out there.

         18  And they will tell you also, the industry, if you

         19  would put a cap on the amount of vans, you would

         20  give them a better business to invest in, because

         21  then there will be something to invest in because

         22  there is a transportation system. If everybody could

         23  put a sticker on their car and say I am a van

         24  service, and I could pick up for a buck, that will

         25  kill their industry as well. So, I think there is a
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          2  way of finding a common ground where we can give

          3  what this industry wants and also protect the riding

          4  public and public transportation, and that is what

          5  we are looking for.

          6                 I would like to see a legal licensed

          7  industry, limit it in the way of how many -- unless,

          8  for example, like we did with taxis, do the same

          9  thing with vans and then you come back and say, you

         10  know what? It is working, public transportation is

         11  not being hurt, you are not being hurt, the City is

         12  getting out of it because they are paying their

         13  taxes, they have their insurance and the public is

         14  not in jeopardy, we will go along with it.

         15                 I think you have to take a hard look

         16  and look for a way of putting a cap and working

         17  within that cap, because you can come back and say,

         18  you know what? There is a need for another 200 and

         19  the reasons why and we work with you.

         20                 I am telling you now publicly, it

         21  can't be more public than this. I will support a

         22  legal van operation that takes into consideration

         23  the fair balance of public transportation and its

         24  need now. Because it is very simple, the MetroCard

         25  basically helped us in this very big problem, and I
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          2  think obviously those who are using the van service

          3  obviously do need it and to specialize service that

          4  I can deal with it, and I would like to work towards

          5  that. And if you can find a better way, and you want

          6  to come up with it, I will come up with different

          7  legislation where it has the balance of both the

          8  industry, as well as the public transportation. And

          9  I bet you the industry, the van industry will

         10  support you too, because the legal guys who have

         11  invested don't want to see their business

         12  underminded. If they are investing good money

         13  getting good vans, making sure they are properly

         14  inspected, get the right drivers, why would they

         15  want illegal guys running all over the place and

         16  running amuck and undermining them?

         17                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE:

         18  Clearly they don't, Councilman. Clearly they don't.

         19                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: You know, you keep

         20  on telling me things, they don't do this, they don't

         21  do that, you are saying --

         22                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: They

         23  don't want illegal vans, Councilman.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: They don't want,

         25  good.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: They

          3  do not.

          4                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: So we agree on

          5  something, we all don't want illegal vans.

          6                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE:

          7  That's correct.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: The way to do it

          9  then is to tighten up their industry, put them under

         10  control, have no problems doing it and on the fear

         11  with the cap this is what we do. And if there is a

         12  need for more, we will deal with that at that point.

         13                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: We

         14  believe the licensing process is very stringent, we

         15  believe it works very, very well. I will just

         16  reiterate, Councilman, we showed you our study, can

         17  we see yours?

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: You keep on saying

         19  that study, my counsel has told me it was not a

         20  study, it was an internal document that was somehow

         21  mistakingly given to one reporter, I understand,

         22  many months ago, and everybody makes reference to

         23  it. And I will see to it, I will ask the Counsel

         24  could they send you a copy. It was an internal

         25  document, not a report.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Well,

          3  it is referred to in your legislation, so it is

          4  actually in the bill --

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Where? Can you show

          6  me?

          7                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE:

          8  Section 1.

          9                 UNIDENTIFIED SPEAKER: Section 1, line

         10  8. I quote, "The Council believes that research

         11  conducted by the Department of City Planning and the

         12  Council makes it possible to identify those areas of

         13  the City where commuter vans are appropriate to meet

         14  the need for complimentary transportation and

         15  establish the number of vans that is appropriate",

         16  and we also FOIL'd the study, Councilman. We haven't

         17  had a response yet.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: We FOIL'd you, we

         19  probably learned from the best how not to avoid

         20  giving people what they want. I mean, we are

         21  learning from you guys. Give me a break.

         22                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE:

         23  Councilman, that is not our intent.

         24                 And also there are reports in the

         25  media where I believe there were conversations,
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          2  whether it went on with you or someone in your

          3  office who did, I believe it was the New York Post

          4  alluded to a study. But whatever you have, I mean, I

          5  just think --

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Yes, we do do

          7  research things. Every time we do any new law we do

          8  research, but it wasn't a report, and I will ask

          9  that the Council give you whatever research

         10  material, because there is nothing to hide, okay?

         11                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Thank

         12  you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I mean I don't hold

         14  back on information, we are a public body.

         15                 Anyhow, I know there are a lot of

         16  Council members who want to ask questions.

         17                 Council Member Eisland.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Thank you

         19  very much.

         20                 Good afternoon.

         21                 I think first it is important to

         22  establish that no side of City Hall has a lock on

         23  entrepreneurialship and encouraging

         24  entrepreneurialship in the City of New York.

         25                 I can go back at least a dozen years
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          2  to a service that is still in existence on the

          3  border between Council Member Warden's district and

          4  my own that is a van service that we spent countless

          5  days and hours on trying to help them through the

          6  bureaucracy and they certainly provide a wonderful

          7  service in an area that doesn't have good public

          8  transportation, particularly east west in the

          9  Wakefield Edenwald area. We will continue to find

         10  places like that and encourage that kind of

         11  entrepreneurialship.

         12                 Conversely, I guess I have spent the

         13  better part of my public life actually sitting in

         14  this chair formally as the Chair of this Committee

         15  trying to encourage better mass transit.

         16                 Being the mother of the transit pass

         17  that we now enjoy, and having held dozens of

         18  hearings on that and many other ways, I don't think

         19  anybody at this table, nor anybody in this room

         20  wants to preside over the demise of any part of a

         21  mass transit system, and I think it is something

         22  that we all really have to remember very carefully.

         23                 It would seem that some of the things

         24  that need to be done in the City right now

         25  concerning the already legalized van services should
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          2  be done rather speedily.

          3                 One of the concerns that I have

          4  gotten from the North Bronx is that people are

          5  concerned because of all of the publicity, they

          6  don't want to get into gypsy cabs that aren't

          7  properly insured or inspected or et cetera, nor do

          8  they want to get into that they can't identify as

          9  being legal vans, with certain car services and

         10  taxis, you have recognizable colors, medallions,

         11  insignias, et cetera. Is there any way that people

         12  can recognize a legal van service, as far as a City

         13  kind of ability to have them put forth if they are

         14  legal?

         15                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: They

         16  currently do have markings, I will let my first dep

         17  address that.

         18                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER: (Not

         19  identified by name) yes, pursuant to current law,

         20  all licensed commuter vans are required to be marked

         21  as specified in the law. Side markings with the DOT

         22  number, as well as the TLC number, inside the

         23  vehicle as well they are supposed to post

         24  information as required by law.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: I would
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          2  suggest that you have more enforcement on that,

          3  because that is not something that I am finding is

          4  happening in areas where people have called me, not

          5  only in the Bronx but people who are interested in

          6  the issue from Brooklyn have called me as well.

          7                 Another concern that many of us have

          8  had is that there are a lot of legal services where

          9  perhaps the drivers are known because the drivers or

         10  the owners ply their regular route and people have

         11  confidence that they know who they are. Many of them

         12  live in the community, which is a good thing, but is

         13  there a requirement for them, when you get in a cab

         14  to have their number or their picture or some kind

         15  of official identification? If they have gone to the

         16  trouble of becoming legal, it would be good for

         17  consumers to know that this is where you look for it

         18  in the van and what that kind of marking is.

         19                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: You

         20  are correct, currently there is not. It is something

         21  we are looking at. We are on the same page, we

         22  absolutely agree with that. You should be able to

         23  look up and say that is Councilman Dear driving my

         24  van or whomever and you should be able to make an

         25  identification. I didn't mean to be snide.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: I am either in the

          3  pockets of the TWU or the van operators, let me know

          4  which one, make it clear.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Let

          6  me change that. Councilwoman Eisland driving the

          7  van, we agree.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: That's fine.

          9                 I had a complaint from a number of

         10  people actually in Brooklyn, close to Council Member

         11  Dear's district. Some people had asked a van driver

         12  to take them to Manhattan. That was not the normal

         13  route. They got there in a way that was extremely

         14  circuitous in the same way that we make the cabbies

         15  go to charm school and also learn their way around

         16  the City and help improve their English, et cetera,

         17  are there any requirements for either carrying maps

         18  or learning routes or learning ways into Manhattan,

         19  if they are in fact legally able to do that?

         20                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: There

         21  are a couple of answers to that. Number one, they

         22  have to have 19A status for driving. Routes are not

         23  supposed to operate, as you know, out of their

         24  approved routes. And quite frankly, and I think we

         25  have started to look, actually several months ago,
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          2  at a form of taxi school for every single person

          3  that carries a TLC license, whether it is a livery

          4  license or whether it is a commuter van license or a

          5  paratransit license, I suspect that that will make

          6  some people happy and I think it will make a lot of

          7  people also unhappy, but these are professional men

          8  an women drivers and we expect them to be in a

          9  professional standard and it will be several months

         10  before we have anything along the school in place,

         11  because we are working with the same schools that

         12  already do the taxi schools and they are in the

         13  process of drafting now.

         14                 So, whether it is going to actually

         15  come to fruition, I don't know. But there again, we

         16  are on the same page, we believe it is something as

         17  this industry grows that may be needed.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: I ask these

         19  questions in anticipation of hopefully all of us

         20  ending up on the same page with a bill that is going

         21  to expand van service, but hopefully expand the van

         22  service where we don't have other services and where

         23  I think more and more people will use the services.

         24  And I think just as I am always pleading in the

         25  North Bronx, as you know, because I have called you,
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          2  I have more and better enforcement so that I know

          3  that people get into insured vehicles and inspected

          4  vehicles with drivers with licenses, et cetera, in

          5  the anticipation that we will come up with a bill,

          6  it would be helpful to have some of the things in

          7  place that I have just mentioned so that people that

          8  maybe who are not as familiar with using the same

          9  van services when they first start to do that, will

         10  be able to know that they are getting into ones that

         11  are legal and people know how to get around the City

         12  and also that they are safe.

         13                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: We

         14  agree with you, Councilwoman.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Would you

         16  keep us informed of the progress on the questions

         17  that I have asked you?

         18                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE:

         19  Absolutely.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND:

         21  Incrementally.

         22                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE:

         23  Certainly. I will be happy to.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER EISLAND: Thank you.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Thank

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            40

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  you.

          3                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Council Member

          4  Nelson.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Okay, we will

          6  continue this love fest.

          7                 Welcome.

          8                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Thank

          9  you.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Would you

         11  describe the enforcement activities currently being

         12  conducted with respect to the commuter vans?

         13                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Yes,

         14  we certainly will.

         15                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER: (Not

         16  identified by name.) The primary responsibility of

         17  enforcing against commuter vans lies with the

         18  surface transportation enforcement district of the

         19  NYPD.

         20                 Some of the numbers that they have

         21  provided for me, Fiscal Year 1998 they had issued

         22  over 7,400 summonses to unlicensed, illegal commuter

         23  vans, as well as licensed commuter vans who commit

         24  violations.

         25                 They have also seized over 1,070
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          2  vehicles and commuter vans during that same time

          3  period.

          4                 More importantly, the surface

          5  transportation enforcement district has put together

          6  a multi-agency enforcement task force operation that

          7  focuses primarily on transportation and traffic

          8  violations currently on two corridors in Brooklyn,

          9  the Flatbush Avenue corridor and the Uttica Avenue

         10  corridor. They have conducted four operations to

         11  date during this calendar year. They have issued a

         12  total of 8,018 summonses during those 14 operations,

         13  they have seized over 250 vehicles, they have made

         14  over 59 arrests. Not all focused on commuter vans,

         15  but, again, focused on transportation and traffic

         16  violations along those corridors.

         17                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: You answered

         18  most of the questions I had. Multi-agency task force

         19  is doing it?

         20                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: The

         21  enforcement issue? Just the enforcement issue, sir?

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Right.

         23                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Yes,

         24  it is NYPD and TLC. We work jointly together.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER NELSON: Okay.
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          2                 Actually, okay, you covered most of

          3  my questions in this area, and going along with the

          4  Chair's advice, I will pass to the next speaker.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Thank

          7  you, Councilman.

          8                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Council Member

          9  McCaffrey.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Thank you,

         11  Mr. Chair. Obviously the people who are involved in

         12  this industry, the people who are concerned about it

         13  do deserve some very sincere public policy

         14  discussion.

         15                 Madam Chair, your statement wreaks of

         16  hypocrisy of the worst form. To come in here and to

         17  tell us, on behalf of this Administration, that

         18  everyone should be guided by a Supreme Court

         19  Decision, let me say to you the following three

         20  letters, E-A-U, okay? In which the Administration

         21  has totally blown away the Supreme Court decisions

         22  that have come down in regards in the past on it.

         23                 You want to talk about secrecy? It

         24  was invented by this Administration, okay? And to

         25  come in and to say, oh, we are the ones that are
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          2  going to end up revealing everything - oh, please.

          3  Are you going to tell me that that is going to be

          4  the case in everything else in this Administration?

          5                 You come in and you say, oh, for

          6  example, we believe, and we all do here at this

          7  table too, that, quote, "they" meaning the folks in

          8  this industry, "have earned the loyalty and respect

          9  of their customers and seek only to expand as any

         10  business would in the name of healthy competition,

         11  competition this body should be promoting as a sign

         12  of a healthy and vital New York City economy", yes?

         13  What about street vendors and the Administration?

         14  Okay? Selective consideration here on this.

         15                 You know, it comes to the point here,

         16  quite frankly, if you want to have a serious

         17  discussion, let us have a serious discussion. Please

         18  don't come in and be condescending to us and tell us

         19  that a Supreme Court Decision is the end all be all,

         20  because that is highly offensive to us.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Can I

         22  just address, I would like to stay out of the

         23  political area and just address this specific issue.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: That is not

         25  political, Ma'am, that is on the basis of your
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          2  statement.

          3                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: And

          4  on the basis of your statement, it is also this law

          5  is in the Administrative Code and I believe it is in

          6  the City Charter, which is not a Supreme Court

          7  decision. The Administrative Code is yours, and

          8  clearly, the licensing authority under the

          9  administrative code is the TLC.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: That's

         11  fine. It doesn't have any point to what I am talking

         12  about, but that's fine.

         13                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: No,

         14  wait. Yes, Councilman, it does. We cited the recent

         15  court case because we felt that that was the most

         16  relevant matter at hand. But we will be happy, if

         17  you would like to cite the Administrative Code --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: That is the

         19  end all be all, okay? And if that was the case, the

         20  Administration would be complying in a whole host of

         21  other areas.

         22                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE:

         23  Councilman, if you will respectfully address those

         24  questions to the Mayor he would respectfully answer

         25  them.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Okay, I am

          3  happy to end up having the standards apply in

          4  everything, but please don't come in here with this

          5  type of situation, Madam Chair, in which you come in

          6  like this, this is hypocritical, I have to tell you.

          7  If you are representing the Administration on it, at

          8  least be consistent, okay?

          9                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: I

         10  believe the Giuliani Administration is very

         11  consistent, and I believe they have been

         12  consistently fair and I am here to testify on the

         13  commuter van issue, it is the only remarks that I

         14  have addressed today, and we have been clear and

         15  concise as the Administration --

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: We will

         17  call you back and ask you to comment when you watch,

         18  for example, what happens by another one of your

         19  colleagues and the Administration with this supposed

         20  policy that is being articulated here.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Sir,

         22  I don't testify for my colleagues, I testify for the

         23  TLC.

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER McCAFFREY: Well, what

         25  is good for the goose is good for the gander.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Council Member

          3  Stabile.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: I should move

          5  pretty quick.

          6                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Good

          7  morning, sir.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Good morning.

          9                 Commuter vans, the primary operator

         10  of commuter vans in the City of New York are

         11  minorities; am I correct, Commissioner?

         12                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Yes,

         13  sir, that is correct.

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay. And the

         15  large minority community is also the community that

         16  is served by these commuter vans?

         17                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: That

         18  is also correct, Councilman.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay.

         20                 Commissioner, isn't it true that the

         21  terrible tragedy that occurred really had nothing to

         22  do with the status of the commuter van?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE:

         24  That's correct. That was an illegal operator.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: He was not a
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          2  licensed operator.

          3                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: No.

          4  That was not a licensed operator.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: He was

          6  illegal.

          7                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: And I

          8  really quite -- I mean, I think that is meant to

          9  appeal on a very irrational emotional basis. That

         10  was a tragedy and it shouldn't be an issue here

         11  today. It was an illegal operator.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Thank you.

         13                 Now, the last thing I wanted to ask

         14  you, if we are closing the doors and we are going to

         15  put limits on commuter vans, closing the door,

         16  licensing additional commuter vans, operators of

         17  commuter vans, the legitimate ones, are we also

         18  creating a problem, what about the illegal ones? How

         19  do we stop the illegal ones? Are we then opening the

         20  door for more people to become illegal van operators

         21  by licensing --

         22                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: No,

         23  by licensing and regulating, that is how you keep

         24  the hard-working industry and the control together.

         25  And clearly from an enforcement point of view, the
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          2  licensing and the regulation is the most and that is

          3  the easiest for NYPD and TLC to enforce against, you

          4  know, when you can enforce against illegal

          5  operators.

          6                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: So we do not

          7  want to create the atmosphere where more illegal

          8  operators feel they can run loose in the City of New

          9  York and do what they want to do?

         10                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE:

         11  Councilman, I absolutely agree with you, but when

         12  you just look at the language of this bill where

         13  they are referred to as predators, I mean that is

         14  making a tremendous statement. It is like how unfair

         15  can you be.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Commissioner,

         17  my last question to you is, isn't it true that the

         18  community was given the opportunity for public

         19  hearing and request and are the ones who need and

         20  ask for the service of the community vans?

         21                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Yes.

         22  There has been a public hearing, New York City DOT

         23  held a public hearing in every community board --

         24                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Oh, they have

         25  done that?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Yes,

          3  they have.

          4                 The specific questions about the

          5  conduct of the hearing and who appeared, et cetera,

          6  those would have to be asked of DOT. But, yes, they

          7  do hold them.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay.

          9                 And how do you feel the response is

         10  at these meetings?

         11                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: I

         12  have not attended those meetings myself, Councilman,

         13  so I really don't know. I would ask Commissioner

         14  Chapman to send you a statement along those lines,

         15  if you would like.

         16                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Okay.

         17                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Sure.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER STABILE: Thank you

         19  very much.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Council Member

         21  Lopez.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Welcome, Madam

         23  Chair.

         24                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Thank

         25  you.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I absolutely

          3  agree with you that the Administration is

          4  completely, constantly consistent with their

          5  position.

          6                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Thank

          7  you. I was waiting for that.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: We agree on

          9  that.

         10                 I just have one question for you, and

         11  it is in regard of the MTA. I assume that your

         12  testimony here when I was reading it is an

         13  indication that in certain communities, the services

         14  that the MTA is providing to the people who need to

         15  use mass transportation is not adequate and

         16  efficient, and therefore these kind of vans will be

         17  a help to those communities; that is what your

         18  testimony is geared to?

         19                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Yes.

         20  That is the basic. Yes, that is the basic of the

         21  testimony.

         22                 And then also, in addition to that,

         23  that is one of the most fundamental is that the

         24  communities are underserved to start with, is that

         25  the fact what is wrong with you having a right to
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          2  choose? What is wrong with you going to work, living

          3  in Brooklyn and being able to come into let's say

          4  Chinatown or Little Italy or wherever and a little

          5  more door to door service, what is wrong with that?

          6  It is driven by customers.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: I understand

          8  the question of right to choose because I am a firm

          9  believer of the women having the right to choose

         10  absolutely of what to do with their own body.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: That

         12  makes two of us.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: And it is the

         14  same thing here. And I undertstand that, I

         15  understand that concept very much. But if you have

         16  that premises, that our communities are not served

         17  adequately by MTA and that they mandate, in what do

         18  you base those opinions? And if you have data that

         19  indicates that information and that proves that, I

         20  would like to get it. I would like to know what

         21  communities in New York City have been shortchanged

         22  by the services that the MTA are supposed to provide

         23  to them, and I would like to know where those

         24  communities are because if legislation is going to

         25  be approved for this, then I wonder, will all
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          2  communities be dealt with adequately and fair and

          3  equally?

          4                 I want to know where these studies

          5  have been made and where the data is that indicates

          6  that these services are lacking and not appropriate

          7  and not sufficient and are being shortchanged those

          8  communities.

          9                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCHECHNIE: It is

         10  in a City Planning study. It was done, I am not sure

         11  exactly when it was initiated, at least a couple of

         12  years, it is working since 1997. We will certainly

         13  be happy to get you a copy of it, or we can leave

         14  one here, it is a commuter van service policy study.

         15  And it is also a working document, because more vans

         16  are licensed, et cetera, obviously the numbers

         17  change, and the population shifts around a bit. So,

         18  we will be happy, we have the study here and we will

         19  be happy to give it to you.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: This study was

         21  made in the entire City, or just in a particular

         22  area of the City?

         23                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: In

         24  the entire city.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: In the entire
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          2  City.

          3                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCHECHNIE: I

          4  believe every borough, yes.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: Okay, thank you

          6  very much.

          7                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Thank

          8  you.

          9                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Council Member

         10  Rodriguez.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Good

         12  afternoon, Madam Chair. I just have first a

         13  statement and then a short question.

         14                 When we talk about the legal vans and

         15  the illegal vans and we mix them all up, I represent

         16  Sunset Park in Brooklyn, and a couple of years ago,

         17  I don't know it may have been ten or 20 licensed

         18  vans over there or whatever it is, and now I look on

         19  the streets and I see what I think to be hundreds of

         20  illegal vans. And I live down the block from where,

         21  you know, they get off the highway and then they

         22  stop, and it seems as if we are allowing them to do

         23  that. And when I say that, no proactive steps have

         24  been taken to prevent it.

         25                 We met about six months ago, I don't
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          2  know if you remember, and I mentioned several thing

          3  that I wanted you to look into, but I mentioned that

          4  maybe you should send some inspectors down and when

          5  the inspectors did go down, one day I am driving my

          6  children to school and who is pulled over? One of

          7  the legal vans. And I parked behind them and I sat

          8  there for about 15 minutes, by the way the illegal

          9  van operator thought I was a TLC because he didn't

         10  know who I was when I pulled up, and I said let me

         11  see what goes on. They held the legal van operator

         12  there for about a half hour at 8:15 in the morning,

         13  when I suspect that is his busiest time. And when I

         14  tried to find out what it was, when I went to the

         15  driver, he said they pulled me over because I was on

         16  a bus route. I saw when they pulled him over and I

         17  saw where he was driving, he was driving down a side

         18  street, and what I am saying is that, because there

         19  is so much traffic out there, with vans and legal

         20  vans and illegal vans, the enforcement is becoming

         21  so difficult, at least in Sunset Park, I don't know

         22  how it is in the rest of New York City, that the

         23  effort has to be made to try to figure a way to

         24  identify them. It is sort of like what Ms. Eisland

         25  was saying.
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          2                 But I recommended to you when we met

          3  six months ago, if you would look into the

          4  possibility of making van stops at the hydrants or

          5  something like that, and no one ever got back to me,

          6  whether it was possible or not or whether it could

          7  be done or not. What we need to do and what they are

          8  asking me every time I meet with the legal van

          9  operators, is find us ways that we can have van

         10  stops so that our customers can know where we are,

         11  so, (a) we don't have to break the law, and be on a

         12  commercial strip that has bus service, which is

         13  against the law, (b) something that works for our

         14  community and works for us, and (c) if we did that,

         15  then we would be able to better identify the illegal

         16  vans. I don't ever recall having ever gotten a

         17  response from you on that, and can you update me of

         18  anything?

         19                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Well,

         20  I know that we have spoken a couple of times, you

         21  have spoken to my first dep, but what I would like

         22  for you to know is that we have -- there again, TLC

         23  is sort of sponsoring but it is a commuter van with

         24  the NYPD, DOT and City Planning, and those very

         25  issues, and we held our first meeting about two
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          2  weeks ago now, on the very issues, such as the

          3  parking and the bus routes and looking for a legal

          4  place for them to pick up. They are the top two to

          5  three things on the agenda, and Councilman, if you

          6  would like, feel free to come to the meetings and we

          7  will notify you.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Sure.

          9                 But the problem is that when we spoke

         10  six months ago, or seven months ago there was a

         11  problem that was starting to brew and I told you

         12  about it, today it is out of control. And I haven't

         13  heard anything. So, it took six months to have your

         14  first meeting and so I don't know where the second

         15  meeting is going to happen, but what I am suggesting

         16  is that there seems to be some sense of urgency but

         17  let's try to get to a resolution so that we can

         18  solve the problem.

         19                 We clearly see that there is a

         20  problem with illegal vans being out there. I don't

         21  know what the insurance qualifications are of these

         22  illegal vans, but I suspect that they are not as

         23  insured as the legal vans. I suspect that if someone

         24  gets into an accident they won't be as covered as in

         25  a legal van. Maybe I am wrong, but we need to solve
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          2  the problem. And I think, I don't want to say you

          3  are dragging your feet on it, but six months I

          4  thought was plenty of time for me to have that in a

          5  response and I didn't and I just wanted to bring it

          6  up again.

          7                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER: (Not

          8  identified by name.) Council Member, as you know I

          9  have spoken to you and to your staff members in your

         10  office several times on two issues; one is, your

         11  constituent complaints about illegal van activity in

         12  and around Sunset Park especially, Eighth Avenue and

         13  the corridor between Sunset Park and Chinatown, we

         14  have had several enforcement operations with the

         15  assistance of your constituent who made that

         16  specific complaint and we plan to return and

         17  continue our enforcement efforts.

         18                 One of the problems is in that

         19  district you have a lot of TLC plated licensed mini

         20  vans affiliated with licensed bases that are

         21  operated --

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: Let me ask

         23  the question: Is that legal or illegal?

         24                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER: It depends

         25  on the investigation. If they are, as a result of a
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          2  prearrangement, then it is legal.

          3                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: You and I

          4  know they are not prearranging when they are driving

          5  down the street picking people up.

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER: And that

          7  is when we issue summonses when we see it. When we

          8  see those violations we issue summonses for it. And

          9  we work together with, I am not going to mention his

         10  name, at the hearing, but we worked together with

         11  him to continue that enforcement in that area, and

         12  we will do so.

         13                 As far as the commuter van stop, the

         14  last message I had with your office was that it was

         15  being handled by the City Office of Legislative

         16  Affairs who in fact did put this Committee together,

         17  as the Chair said, to discuss the issue of commuter

         18  vans.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER RODRIGUEZ: I would

         20  welcome the opportunity to meet with that committee.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Thank

         22  you. We welcome you. We would love to have you.

         23                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Council Member

         24  Spigner.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Thank you.
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          2                 Good morning, Chairperson McKechnie.

          3                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Good

          4  morning.

          5                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: You made a

          6  statement as part of your testimony, "it should also

          7  be said at the outset that the community served by

          8  these providers have overwhelmingly supported the

          9  Giuliani Administration's efforts on their behalf."

         10                 In that connection of the application

         11  process, and evidence of support, are community

         12  board decisions taken into consideration?

         13                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: No,

         14  sir, they are not. It is not required by law.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Well, then if

         16  community boards, as I know it, are supposed to be

         17  the voice of a community --

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: We

         19  have public hearings.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: If you ignore

         21  community boards, as for example in Board 12 and

         22  Board 13, which have consistently opposed every

         23  single van application, if you ignore the duly --

         24                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Every

         25  single van application?
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Yes,

          3  Community Board 12 and 13 have not approved a single

          4  one. Community Board 12 and 13 have not approved a

          5  single one. If you ignore the voices of the duly

          6  elected Council Member who has opposed every one,

          7  then how can you conclude that these communities

          8  have overwhelmingly, if you ignore the Councilman,

          9  if you ignore the community board, then what do you

         10  take as evidence of overwhelming support?

         11                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE:

         12  Councilman, we do not, nor does DOT. These hearings

         13  are held in the community and the community board

         14  and the Councilperson is more than welcome to

         15  testify at these public hearings, which would be the

         16  appropriate format for that, and happens to be the

         17  law.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: That is what

         19  you base your conclusion on.

         20                 On that one single isolated DOT

         21  hearing some place in Long Island City, right?

         22                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: No,

         23  sir, it is not Long Island City, it is within the

         24  community.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Where?
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: In

          3  the various community boards.

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Okay.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: They

          6  hold hearings at the community level.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: You do

          8  concede, though, that Community Board 12 and 13 have

          9  opposed every application.

         10                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Sir,

         11  I don't know that, but if you tell me that,

         12  Councilman Spigner, I accept that.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Okay, now, as

         14  it relates to the application itself, how do you

         15  know that, you say that you want to encourage

         16  investments so that these operators and investors

         17  can hire people. Do you ever do any kind of economic

         18  analysis in connection with, in giving these

         19  applications?

         20                 One of my concerns are, one of my

         21  concerns is, among others, is we are contributing to

         22  the self-exploitation, and the exploitation of poor

         23  people. I want to know, the TA does not run empty

         24  buses. On Merrick Boulevard, on Linden Boulevard, I

         25  assure you we could put another 20 buses, another 50
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          2  buses immediately if the vans were not paralleling,

          3  not predatory poaching, but just plain poaching, are

          4  a franchised route. Every bus stop is fair game.

          5  Every bus stop. There is no way in the world that a

          6  van operator can operate without operating on

          7  Merrick Boulevard, which is a franchised route.

          8  Gibrewer Boulevard (phonetic) which is a franchised

          9  route, Linden Boulevard, which is a franchised

         10  route, Archer Avenue which is a franchised area,

         11  this is not predatory, this is just plain out and

         12  out poaching. So, forget predatory, but it is

         13  poaching.

         14                 Do you take -- and this is my

         15  district, I live there, I sit up on Archer Avenue

         16  sometimes and I watch these vans. A van can carry

         17  12, 13, 14 people, I see the guy come in, he goes to

         18  a spot, he spends an hour sometime at 9:00 or 10:00

         19  at night waiting to jockey up to the curb, get his

         20  load, an hour, and how he has got to carry 14 people

         21  back to Rosedale, back to Laurelton, how much is

         22  this poor guy making?

         23                 I don't know how much he is making,

         24  but I will tell you what it is, it is a form of

         25  union busting, because it takes away the job of
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          2  unionized workers, workers who get dental care,

          3  eyeglasses, vacations, pensions. And these are

          4  immigrant people who belong to the TWU, these are

          5  immigrants. A lot of new Americans who work for the

          6  Transit Authority. I am not demonizing immigrants, I

          7  am for good jobs and good wages and first class

          8  service. Mine is a first class community. Now, my

          9  civics want bus line service. We don't want -- our

         10  civics speak to me, they take the vans, of course,

         11  of course, if it is an alternative to inferior and

         12  inadequate bus service, but given the option we

         13  want, and whenever we are given the opportunity to

         14  speak we ask for bus service, but the TA, in my

         15  opinion, is lax in its response to service, because

         16  as long as the vans are there it takes the pressure

         17  off, it keeps the pressure off.

         18                 So, my question then: Do you do any

         19  economic analysis of the potentials or what salaries

         20  are?

         21                 You know, you enforce against sweat

         22  shops, you enforce against underpaid workers in

         23  restaurants, have you ever looked at the kind of

         24  economic situations in the van industry?

         25                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: No,
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          2  Councilman, we do not. That is an entrepreneurial,

          3  that is private sector, but I would ask you to look

          4  at this audience and ask their opinion as to whether

          5  they are working in sweat shops or not.

          6                 And as the wife of a former union

          7  president, Councilman, I don't like where you are

          8  going. These people are not union busters. Beyond my

          9  husband, my family has been very active in the

         10  unions for years. These are entrepreneurials. Just

         11  because you are not union doesn't mean you are bad.

         12  No one supports the unions more than the McKechnie

         13  family, that is not --

         14                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: No, I

         15  disagree. I disagree. I take exception to that. I am

         16  for workers earning a good living and a good job.

         17  That is what I am for.

         18                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCHECHNIE: So,

         19  am I, sir, and we have had a fair amount of our life

         20  vested in that.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: And I would

         22  take a back seat to no one on my advocacy for

         23  workers' rights and for workers' earning a living

         24  and having to provide for themselves, and I am

         25  concerned that the van industry has not constituted
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          2  and has not provided that opportunity, and I am

          3  concerned that when we encourage, without asking,

          4  what kind of living these people are making, in

          5  minimum wage, are they getting pensions, are they

          6  getting maximum coverage? I don't know what they

          7  get, and you say we are authorizing these vans. Put

          8  40 vans out there, northern boundary is Merrick

          9  Boulevard, western boundary is Francis Lewis

         10  Boulevard, the Nassau Line, run any way you want, 24

         11  hours a day, 40 vans.

         12                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE:

         13  Councilman, you must be very upset about the leasing

         14  industry and the medallion industry.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Pardon me?

         16                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: I

         17  hope that you are equally as upset about the leasing

         18  in the medallion industry in which we also license

         19  and regulate.

         20                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: Same thing.

         21                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Where

         22  clearly there has been a track record of abusing

         23  immigrants, and clearly that is not equivalent or

         24  the case here.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: The final
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          2  question, the commuter van legislation defines

          3  commuter service, van service as a transportation

          4  service on a prearranged regular daily basis over

          5  non-specified or a regular route between a

          6  residential neighborhood and a work-related central

          7  location, a mass trans facility, a shopping center

          8  or airport. Now, can you describe to me just what

          9  that definition means and how you enforce.

         10                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: I

         11  will let my first dep, who works with the

         12  enforcement.

         13                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER: The

         14  definition is pretty self explanatory, as you have

         15  read from I guess rules and regulations concerning

         16  commuter vans. The needs assessment made by the

         17  Department of Transportation ensures that their

         18  approval takes into consideration the definition of

         19  what a commuter van service is.

         20                 If they don't concur that the

         21  application as it stands fits within this

         22  definition, they won't approve that application, or

         23  they might just revise the geographical area, as

         24  they have done in the past.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: So it doesn't
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          2  talk about a specified route, it is a geographical

          3  area, bounded by Merrick Boulevard, Hillside Avenue,

          4  the Nassau line, Sutphin Boulevard and anything in

          5  between --

          6                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER: That's

          7  correct.

          8                 COUNCIL MEMBER SPIGNER: -- In a

          9  24-hour period, any way you want it. That is no way

         10  to run a railroad, in my opinion, or a

         11  transportation system.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Council Member

         14  DiBrienza.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Thank you.

         16                 Commissioner, I would appreciate

         17  trying to get some answers to a lot of questions, so

         18  I will try to be brief. But before I begin, let me

         19  just clarify something. Do you know if the Supreme

         20  Court Judge who rendered that decision in your favor

         21  is one of the hacks and political appointees that

         22  the Mayor routinely attacks when the Supreme Court

         23  Judge rules against him?

         24                 No, if you don't know, just say you

         25  don't know. It's fine.
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          2                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: No,

          3  Councilman --

          4                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Okay.

          5                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE:--

          6  With all due respect --

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Do you know

          8  if it is one of the imperial federal court judges

          9  that he routinely rails against when the federal

         10  court rules against him? Oh, the State Court, I

         11  apologize. I guess you know that.

         12                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: It --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: It is not

         14  one of those federal judges.

         15                 Do you know if it is one of the eight

         16  or ten judges who unanimously have ruled against him

         17  in every Freedom of Information case brought against

         18  him that he later goes on to attack?

         19                 You don't have to answer that one,

         20  but understand it is not about you. I mean, I am

         21  observing your performance here and your agency and

         22  you seem to be from a different administration,

         23  based on some of your comments. That is a

         24  compliment, by the way.

         25                 But in any event, you know, you
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          2  brought that level of discourse to the table, so

          3  that is the first issue that needs to be dismissed.

          4                 The second issue, predatory

          5  competition, or whatever unique phrase they come up

          6  with, you are a smart director of an agency, it is a

          7  term of art, a variation on a term of art,

          8  "predatory pricing" is the term of art; are you

          9  familiar with it? Yes or no, Commissioner. Predatory

         10  pricing. We throw out a lot of people who used to

         11  collect garbage in the City, whether they are good

         12  or bad, we bring in two national companies, they

         13  lower their prices, they get all the contracts and

         14  months later they raise their contracts. It happens

         15  all over the world, all over the country, it is

         16  called predatory pricing. Very clear term of art.

         17                 They took a variation and said

         18  predatory competition. They charge a dollar, they

         19  crowd up the streets, they crowd up the traffic

         20  lanes, they crowd up the bus lanes, they give the TA

         21  an excuse for not expanding service, good licensed,

         22  regulated, union, well-paid jobs, quality service -

         23  so that is predatory competition. It was an

         24  interesting variation on the term, so you can throw

         25  out all your Webster definitions, with all due
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          2  respect. It is beneath you. That is a silly attempt

          3  to infuriate each other when you don't need it.

          4                 Now to the substance. How many

          5  illegal vans are on the streets of New York? How

          6  many? You are the Commissioner, do you know?

          7  Hundreds, thousands?

          8                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE:

          9  Excuse me, Councilman. You know, that obviously is a

         10  give and take at any given day, they are illegal.

         11  The definition is they are illegal, they don't

         12  register with the TLC. We lock them up.

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Do you have

         14  a sense of how many?

         15                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: I am

         16  not here to play silly guessing games. I mean, they

         17  are illegal. Just like illegal livery, what do we

         18  do? We arrest them. We seize their vehicles.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: The reason

         20  I ask is it seems to me that there are a growing

         21  number of illegal vans, as there are illegal

         22  liveries, and I don't believe you do anywhere near

         23  enough enforcement over illegals, whether they be

         24  vans or liveries. You basically go after

         25  hard-working TLC-related folks, or you know,
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          2  licensed folks and you don't do enough with the

          3  illegals. I see it all the time, it is like parking

          4  tickets. They give out parking tickets in the most

          5  stable areas they can find because they think they

          6  will have a higher degree of success in collecting

          7  the fines. Well, the fact of the matter is, I don't

          8  think you go after illegals enough, whether they are

          9  vans or your car services, illegal car services.

         10                 So, you don't have to tell me that

         11  there are illegals everywhere, I just thought that

         12  you should know that it seems to me this is a

         13  growing problem.

         14                 Do you look at the streets in terms

         15  of Eighth Avenue and some of these other areas in

         16  terms of how crowded and congested they are? In

         17  terms of how clogged they are?

         18                 Do you go out and survey the streets?

         19                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: DOT I

         20  am sure does that, sir. That is DOT.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Well, you

         22  are the licensing agency.

         23                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Yes,

         24  we are.

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: And you
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          2  should have some direct, hands on kind of experience

          3  with how crowded it is in various areas that you now

          4  intend to further clog with van services. I mean,

          5  you think it is something you need know firsthand,

          6  you should go out and do some surveys. I think it

          7  would be helpful.

          8                 Do you know, your statistics -- I

          9  have three more and then I will be done. The

         10  statistics you gave before, relatively meaningless,

         11  unless you can isolate, and it is not your fault

         12  because the police gave them to you, but by the way,

         13  when you talk about exchange of information there is

         14  a good place to start. We don't get any information

         15  from this Administration, if you ask most people in

         16  this Administration what time it is, they will look

         17  at -- do you know what time it is, they will look at

         18  their watch and say yes until you ask them the

         19  second question.

         20                 In any event, you gave statistics

         21  about how many tickets were given out and I just

         22  want to be cleared for the record, in answer to my

         23  colleague you said that is a combination of

         24  illegals, legals, everything, right? Can you break

         25  out how many tickets were given to illegals? Do you
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          2  have that statistic?

          3                 FIRST DEPUTY COMMISSIONER: We cannot

          4  differentiate right now between illegal, unlicensed

          5  operators, and legal operators that commit

          6  violations.

          7                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Okay. It

          8  would be helpful, because it seems to me a big part

          9  of the problem would be illegals.

         10                 Now, one more thing, Commissioner.

         11                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Well,

         12  a big part of the problem --

         13                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: In my

         14  opinion, so it wasn't a question.

         15                 You were talking before about worried

         16  about the struggling workers and helping

         17  entrepreneurs, all of that language, all of that, on

         18  behalf of the Giuliani Administration, the economic

         19  renaissance of the City.

         20                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Yes.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Is that

         22  about poor struggling working people that this

         23  Administration is dedicated to? Is that what you are

         24  trying to say? I was wondering.

         25                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: You
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          2  know what I am detecting is that you have a problem

          3  with the Administration. I support this

          4  Administration. I mean, somehow that little bell was

          5  going off in my head. Respectfully, Councilman, I

          6  think this Mayor is doing an extraordinary job. I

          7  think he is the best Mayor in the history of New

          8  York. And Councilman, if you have an issue with him,

          9  take it up with him.

         10                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: My point is

         11  in relation to what you are doing.

         12                 COUNCIL MEMBER LOPEZ: With that I

         13  disagree with the last statement that he is the best

         14  Mayor of the City of New York, he is the worst ever.

         15                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: The point

         16  is, I bring up those global issues in the context of

         17  (a) your presentation, and (b) this issue. And it

         18  doesn't ring true to the facts when you try to make

         19  those global points as a part of this

         20  Administration, number one, even though it is not

         21  your substantive area, and number two --

         22                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE:

         23  Councilman, can't you see that we might have a

         24  different approach to how this is done? It is not my

         25  way or no way.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: No, on the

          3  substantive area -- no, I didn't say that. On the

          4  substantive area you don't have, I suggest, enough

          5  of the facts and the statistics to justify the

          6  position you are taking. This is an attempt to

          7  limit, not regulate, because you still license and

          8  regulate, to limit the overall number based on the

          9  sort of conditions that are out there, the level of

         10  illegal activity, the congestion in the streets, the

         11  attack in terms of public safety, the lack of

         12  standards and regulatory standards and conditions,

         13  whether it is workers, as one member brought up, or

         14  the street safety which another member brought up,

         15  and I think that is the area that should be debated,

         16  but the problem in part, why I am talking in general

         17  is because that is the presentation you make in

         18  general, as opposed to debating the specifics of

         19  illegal vans, of the kinds of activities that go out

         20  there and the kinds of suggestion, the kinds of

         21  enforcement. That is why we are having this broader

         22  discussion where you say everything is great under

         23  this Administration and I disagree, you say they are

         24  trying to help poor, struggling people, and I say

         25  they have destroyed the lives of poor people in this
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          2  City, or you say that they are not anti-union and

          3  when in fact that is what they are. So, I mean,

          4  those debates, you are right, you say the Supreme

          5  Court is important when this Mayor routinely insults

          6  him for a living. We don't get to those broad issues

          7  because it is a debate, we get there because you

          8  brought us there, and I think we should be talking

          9  about enforcement, the number of illegals, the

         10  reasonable approach that the Committee is trying to

         11  take to regulate an industry, the support for public

         12  transportation, which I think is something lacking

         13  by the leadership of the Administration, so I mean

         14  those are some of the issues we probably would be

         15  better off discussing.

         16                 Thank you, Mr. Chairman.

         17                 COMMISSIONER MCGRATH-MCKECHNIE: Can I

         18  just go on the record, with all due respect, I

         19  disagree. Thank you.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Council Member

         21  Clarke.

         22                 COUNCIL MEMBER CLARKE: Thank you, Mr.

         23  Chairman, for the courtesy of allowing me to sit on

         24  your committee and to give my own comments.

         25                 As you know, Mr. Chairman, I have
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          2  probably been one of the greatest supporters of the

          3  commuter van, and let me just go on record as

          4  feeling insulted by the word predator in the

          5  legislation, words like first class community, as

          6  used by another colleague, and let me go on record

          7  as saying the community that he represents is a

          8  world class community, because my people live there.

          9                 Secondly, any code word that

         10  describes immigrants, period, as predators, we did

         11  not come to America to be predators, whether we are

         12  from Asia, Africa or the Caribbean. And it seems to

         13  me that these are the persons now trying to get in

         14  the commuter van industry. This has been the way of

         15  America, people have come, have taken their niche,

         16  have built businesses, and being in a union and

         17  being an entrepreneur is not opposed to each other.

         18                 My father, the cane farmer in

         19  Jamaica, started the Bustamante Industrial Trade

         20  Union in order to get fair price for his sugar and

         21  the rum that his cane produced. That didn't keep him

         22  from owning a general store and being an

         23  entrepreneur owning a store, and nobody that came

         24  and bought fish, flower or whatever they bought from

         25  us, felt that he was taking anything from them. And
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          2  I think that people don't understand the difference

          3  between having a job and owning a business, and the

          4  risk one takes in buying van or vans and operate in

          5  the industry, and if we want to talk about

          6  regulations where they are needed or where they

          7  should not be needed, what is the numbers that

          8  should be out there, it is a different argument than

          9  trying to describe people and the community from

         10  which they come in language that belittles. And I

         11  resent being belittled because I still have my

         12  accent.

         13                 Secondly, Mr. Chairman, let me

         14  propose, since I have been a supporter of, that I

         15  will work very diligently with the Committee and

         16  with all communities and with all persons interested

         17  in the industry to make sure that it is responsive,

         18  that it is regulated, that anybody running a van out

         19  there illegally, that they send an application to

         20  the TLC and come out from being underground and

         21  become legitimate. That is the only way we are going

         22  to clear the decks and have people legalized. It is

         23  like asking an illegal immigrant to become legal

         24  without going to the INS and asking them for a green

         25  card. So, if you want the van drivers to get their
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          2  green card for driving on the road, we need to

          3  encourage them that if you want to be legal, fill an

          4  application out, we will support you, but after that

          5  you can't work on the road undocumented or illegal,

          6  whichever way you want to put that, in the same

          7  language that I know. And I think that is the only

          8  way, Mr. Chairman, you are going to be able to know

          9  what numbers are out there, what are sufficient

         10  numbers, based on those who want to be legal.

         11  Because the people who want to be legal will come

         12  forward, if they want to be illegal, then TLC, the

         13  Department of Transportation and the Police

         14  Department know that these people don't want to be a

         15  part in the legitimate industry and therefore should

         16  be enforced. But we can't put the cart before the

         17  horse, we always have to put the horse in front of

         18  the cart, and we have helped to create, and in my

         19  mind I think that we need to move forward, and that

         20  is the only way we are going to know how many vans

         21  are needed, where they are and how they should be

         22  regulated and enforced. And I now pledge myself, Mr.

         23  Chairman, since I have always been on this

         24  Committee, voicing the voice of the community from

         25  which I come, and raising objections to any
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          2  disrespect of the people that I represent from any

          3  of the 78 nations from which they come to live in

          4  the 40th district, I resent any language that

          5  describes them as being predator, as being whatever

          6  other names you want to call us, we come to give, we

          7  haven't come to take anything from America. This is

          8  the way this country has become, strong and

          9  productive, by taking in new energy, new life, and

         10  new businesses and new ways of doing things and it

         11  should not be looked down upon.

         12                 Mr. Chairman, I thank you for

         13  allowing me to let you know what I feel and how I

         14  feel, and to you, Madame Chair, of both the

         15  Department of Transportation, TLC, because I have

         16  been an advocate of the industry and I now also say

         17  to the union, we should all be working together to

         18  make sure that there is safety in the road, that

         19  there is public confidence in whichever

         20  transportation mode they elect to ride, that we

         21  complement the existing transportation system and

         22  that we do a job that makes sure that every New

         23  Yorker has a choice to do what they want to do.

         24                 I shop where somebody else don't shop

         25  because I can't afford to shop there, but that
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          2  doesn't mean I don't come in I think as well dressed

          3  as I can, based upon what my pocketbook allows me to

          4  do, and I think that is what we are all about here.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay. Thank you

          7  very much. There are no further questions.

          8                 Commissioner, I have someone else

          9  testifying, and then I would like in a few minutes

         10  if I could talk to you afterwards. If you could wait

         11  around a few minutes.

         12                 Willy James.

         13                 I want to explain the procedure, it

         14  has been rather lengthy and we have a problem here

         15  because we have to be out of here by 1:00 and we are

         16  not going to really make it, but even for the few

         17  minutes after, so let me suggest what we are going

         18  to do.

         19                 We will take testimony from Mr. James

         20  and also I guess Hector Richards, we will allow them

         21  more than the two minutes, but everybody else, I am

         22  asking you to limit it to two minutes, or if you are

         23  in opposition, I have it on record here. I have a

         24  balancing act that I have to do here timewise, there

         25  are a lot of meetings going on.
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          2                 Mr. President.

          3                 MR. JAMES: Good morning, Mr.

          4  Chairman. Can you hear me, sir?

          5                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Yes.

          6                 MR. JAMES: All right.

          7                 First of all, I put on my clothes

          8  this morning, and when I was getting ready to put my

          9  wallet in my pocket and put my keys in my pocket, I

         10  did not see any member of this Council in my pocket.

         11                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: If they accuse me

         12  of having such a relationship, I wouldn't mind

         13  getting a tie like that, so now I am going to ask

         14  you for the record, you can buy me with that tie.

         15                 MR. JAMES: Thank you very much.

         16                 I also take personal offense --

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Identify yourself

         18  for the record.

         19                 MR. JAMES: I am sorry. My name --

         20  first of all, good morning.

         21                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Good afternoon.

         22                 MR. JAMES: My name is Willie James, I

         23  am the President of the Transport Workers Union, of

         24  over 35,000 members who are hard-working, clean

         25  professionals, who have a vested interest in the
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          2  survival of the transit system. A lot of them

          3  represent not only the 78 countries from the

          4  Caribbean, but they also are Russians, they also are

          5  Jews, they also are African-Americans coming from

          6  Africa, they are from everywhere. We are the melting

          7  pot of this City. We represent every race and creed

          8  in this City, and we are union, we have been

          9  trained, we are professionals, and I take offense of

         10  the fact that it is being characterized that we are

         11  opposed immigrants. This union, that people will

         12  take the time to go back in history will understand

         13  that Michael Quill was an immigrant, and he took on

         14  a position to make sure that immigrants are workers,

         15  including black people, had a fair treatment, and he

         16  stood for the right of all workers, not only union.

         17  And he went through, I hate to say the word, hell,

         18  to be able to accomplish that.

         19                 Now, here we are, you have the first

         20  African-American president of the Transport Workers

         21  Union because of the wisdom, because a man stood up

         22  for the right of anybody, regardless of their race,

         23  creed or color, to be able to be a part of this

         24  great union, to have a decent job, to have a decent

         25  pension, to make sure they are working under safe

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            84

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  conditions, and that translated out into not only a

          3  Transport Workers Union, but the labor movement as a

          4  whole has always been an organization with social

          5  consciousness, and I take personal offense of that

          6  kind of characterization of any labor leader, any

          7  labor union, or any labor movement in here. I just

          8  want to make that for the record.

          9                 Now, as you might know, commuter vans

         10  have long been an issue of pressing importance to

         11  this union, and our members as well. I am glad that

         12  this Committee is finally taking action to ensure a

         13  safe, convenient transit system for transit

         14  passengers, as well as protecting the livelihood of

         15  our members. Then advocates claim that the licensed

         16  vans will fill the need for service in areas

         17  underserved by the public transportation; however,

         18  in practice many commuter vans follow erratic

         19  routes, weaving in and out of traffic, along bus

         20  routes, illegal picking up of passengers from bus

         21  stops, causing bus accidents, endangering the

         22  transit workers and generally causing service

         23  disruptions for public transit customers.

         24                 My bus drivers have a license, that

         25  license is their bread and butter. Without their
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          2  license, they cannot feed their families. Without

          3  their license they cannot take care of their

          4  children and put them to school. Without their

          5  license they are in serious trouble. And by having

          6  erratic people running up, cutting in front of them,

          7  causing them to have all kinds of accidents, and

          8  whenever they are involved in accidents, even though

          9  they may not be responsible for the accident, they

         10  have to go through the torture of a hearing, a

         11  safety hearing where they are held responsible for

         12  an accident they didn't even start. It is unfair.

         13                 Again, vans are often poorly

         14  maintained, creating dangerous conditions for both

         15  van passengers and the public at large.

         16                 In addition, many communities find

         17  that the vans have a negative impact on the quality

         18  of life, by double parking and causing traffic jams.

         19  And I think that was alluded to already here.

         20                 Much of the problems with vans is due

         21  to the lax of enforcement of existing regulations,

         22  allowing unlicensed and licensed vans to operate

         23  recklessly with impunity.

         24                 In fact, one could argue that the

         25  commuter vans have been allowed to operate without
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          2  any regulation for many years.

          3                 This suggests that the City will

          4  neither enforce the ban on illegal vans, nor

          5  forcefully regulate the so-called legal vans that

          6  operate illegally.

          7                 Moreover, the drivers of both legal

          8  and illegal vans work under sweatshop conditions,

          9  without decent wages, without regular hours, without

         10  safety standards, without health insurance, or a

         11  pension.

         12                 In 1993, the City Council passed

         13  legislation which, in order to regulate the

         14  proliferation of vans to protect the public safety,

         15  allowed the City Council to call up van applications

         16  and approve or reject them.

         17                 A recent court decision resulting in

         18  a suit by the Mayor found that this Council's

         19  call-up provision to be illegal. Without this

         20  provision, the Mayor is free to approve as many van

         21  applications as he wishes.

         22                 The only legislative way remaining is

         23  to control the proliferation of these vans, so as to

         24  better protect the public safety is to put a

         25  legislative cap on the number of van authorizations.
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          2                 There is currently over 500 City and

          3  State authorized vans on the road. There may be

          4  hundreds, maybe even thousands more unlicensed vans

          5  on the street. The City has proposed authorizing as

          6  many as 900 vans. Our analysis of the Mayor's

          7  community van service policy study, which is

          8  attached, uses a more realistic version of the

          9  Mayor's own formula, and shows a solid, defensible

         10  rationale to hold a number of vans exactly where

         11  they are.

         12                 As you know, quick legislative action

         13  is essential because of the high number of pending

         14  authorization applications.  I strongly urge the

         15  City Council to expeditiously enact legislation

         16  setting a cap on van authorizations.

         17                 I also urge that this legislation

         18  contain amendments to the original van law of 1993,

         19  creating additional regulations to ensure proper

         20  operation of the van industry.

         21                 It is only in setting a cap on van

         22  authorizations that we are able to properly police

         23  and observe van operations to ensure public safety.

         24                 As I said earlier, there is currently

         25  little or no enforcement of regulations as they
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          2  apply to vans. If no cap is set, there will be even

          3  less enforcement resulting in greater risk to the

          4  life and limbs of the general public.

          5                 This union, my bus drivers, they have

          6  to live up to drug testing, they have to live up to

          7  all the standards they are tested for, they are

          8  professionals. And all we are asking is to put a

          9  stop to this insanity that is going on and put a cap

         10  on if once and for all that all of us can do our

         11  job, and that is the important thing, and that is to

         12  give adequate service to the riding public, safe,

         13  timely, adequate service to the riding public.

         14                 I thank you for your time and

         15  attention, and I will be happy to answer any

         16  questions any members have.

         17                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Just one question

         18  from Council Member Freed.

         19                 COUNCIL MEMBER FREED: Yes, thank you

         20  very much.

         21                 As a long-time member of this

         22  Committee, and I know we have been through the war

         23  on the question of the commuter vans, and while I

         24  very much agree that there are probably areas of the

         25  City that do need vans, it is very clear that
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          2  districts like mine that are well serviced by public

          3  transportation are nevertheless inundated by so many

          4  of these vans so consistently that we have huge

          5  traffic tie-ups, we continue to have massive

          6  problems, particularly in areas around Chinatown,

          7  downtown, and all I can say is that goes so far to

          8  saying why this bill is so necessary and how

          9  important it is to have a cap in this bill.

         10                 So, I just wanted to state my ongoing

         11  support of this. I mean, this Committee, as I said,

         12  over the years we have tried very hard to be very

         13  conscientious in this effort, and we have

         14  consistently tried to make sure that areas that are

         15  not serviced by public transportation can get some

         16  of the vans that they need, but at the same time,

         17  that these vans not drive out the very necessary

         18  mass transit that we need, and quite frankly, that

         19  will cut down on the pollution and the air problems

         20  that are causing so many problems in districts like

         21  mine and also tremendous traffic congestion. A City

         22  like New York has got to have mass transit and these

         23  vans just fly in the face of that. So, thank you.

         24                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you. We have

         25  no questions.
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          2                 I will ask the next three to come up

          3  together. Hector Ricketts, William Mellor, and

          4  Arthur Cummins.

          5                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON FREED: Okay,

          6  gentlemen, we are doing a timer, so we would ask

          7  each of you to limit your testimony to two minutes.

          8  Thank you.

          9                 Please state your name and proceed.

         10                 MR. RICKETTS: I am Hector Ricketts, I

         11  am President of the Queens Van Plan, which is an

         12  authorized van service in the Borough of Queens. I

         13  am also the President of the Interborough Alliance

         14  for Community Transportation, which represents

         15  commuter vans throughout New York City.

         16                 I thank you for the opportunity to

         17  speak to you today on this very critical issue.

         18                 We have spent many years attending

         19  hearings in this Council and in every instance it

         20  seems as if we are being whipped into shape.

         21                 We are in a situation where the

         22  government does not seem to be on our side as we

         23  attempt not to get social programs but to foster and

         24  grow a business that our community so desperately

         25  needs.
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          2                 To pass this bill, Intro. 544-A,

          3  would be to stifle the growth of an industry that

          4  has been created by, yes, minorities, but certainly

          5  being used by minorities and others throughout this

          6  City of New York.

          7                 We are not in a numbers game. We are

          8  living in a City that is very sophisticated, and we

          9  think that the marketplace, the most basic principle

         10  of economics, supply and demand, the marketplace

         11  should prevail.

         12                 We do not think that a political cap

         13  should be placed on commuter vans in this City. We

         14  are being referred to as folks who are poor and

         15  being exploited. I live in a community and so do my

         16  members, where our neighbors are transit workers,

         17  our lawns look the same, our houses look the same,

         18  we drive the same automobiles, we bank in the same

         19  places, and we go to the same social clubs. We are

         20  not paupers, we are businessmen who see this country

         21  as one that affords opportunity, and we think that

         22  there should not be a cap, it will stifle our

         23  growth. Every van operator behind the wheel of an

         24  authorized van satisfies all of the requirements, as

         25  most drivers do.
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          2                 So, we are not renegades, we are not

          3  outlaws. We don't think that cap is the answer. We

          4  think that opportunity should be given for those out

          5  there who want to become legal, coupled with

          6  rigorous enforcement against those who do not want

          7  to be authorized.

          8                 Thank you very much.

          9                 ACTING CHAIRPERSON FREED: Thank you.

         10                 MR. MELLOR: Good afternoon, Madam

         11  Chair. My name is William Mellor, I am the President

         12  and General Counsel of the Institute for Justice. We

         13  are the lawyers for Hector Ricketts, Vincent

         14  Cummins, Dennis Harry and Pat Harvey, and

         15  Interborough Alliance for Community Transportation.

         16                 For years the City Council has been

         17  able to restrict commuter vans with impunity. The

         18  law was set against commuter vans and the riding

         19  public, I might add. But today it is important to

         20  recognize that the legal rules governing commuter

         21  vans and the authority of this Committee have

         22  changed.

         23                 In recent weeks, dramatic opinions by

         24  the New York Trial Court, and I want to emphasize,

         25  the United States Supreme Court, have severely
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          2  curtailed the authority of this Council to restrict

          3  commuter van activity.

          4                 Commissioner McGrath-McKechnie

          5  accurately described the ruling at the Trial Court

          6  here. Under that rationale, the very act this

          7  Committee is considering today, the imposition of a

          8  cap, would be illegal.

          9                 This Committee, this Council, has no

         10  authority under that ruling to impose a cap on

         11  commuter vans. And whether or not that opinion may

         12  be appealed, it is today the law of the land and I

         13  am confident it would support an injunction against

         14  any cap that this City Council saw fit to pass.

         15                 But perhaps even more importantly for

         16  the long term, last week the United States Supreme

         17  Court issued a resounding opinion in the case of

         18  Signs Viro (phonetic), this is a case that

         19  revitalized the privileges or immunities clause of

         20  the 14th Amendment. A long dormant clause that was

         21  specifically designed and intended to protect

         22  economic liberty, the right to earn an honest

         23  living. It is a case that the New York Times

         24  describes as a tactonic shift in constitutional law.

         25  It sets the stage for fundamental reassessment of
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          2  government's authority to engage in economic

          3  regulation, and I am confident that under that law,

          4  under that constitutional provision, this cap would

          5  not stand.

          6                 Commuter vans are here to stay, we

          7  cannot and should not try to put the genie back in

          8  the bottle. The riding public supports commuter

          9  vans, and most importantly, at the moment the law

         10  supports commuter vans. It is time to let vans roll.

         11                 MR. CUMMINS: Good afternoon, Mr.

         12  Chairman and Council Members. My name is Arthur

         13  Cummins, and I did not do a study on the necessity

         14  of vans as you have done, the Giuliani

         15  Administration has done. I can only speak from what

         16  I have observed. What I have observed in the area

         17  that we serve is that many people have been calling

         18  our office and asking us to provide service in other

         19  areas where they think the vans are really needed,

         20  and I believe that regulation for industry is a

         21  thing that should be done. And the TLC is doing a

         22  very good job of that. But setting a cap on the

         23  industry is not the right thing to do. I believe

         24  that is going to stifle the industry, not enhance

         25  the industry. And we in the industry want to send a
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          2  clear message to the Administration here that we do

          3  not rely on welfare, we like to work for a living,

          4  the same as any other person that wants to earn a

          5  decent living. We provide service for the area of

          6  where we operate, and so far it has been a

          7  worthwhile venture for us.

          8                 I want to say, the Council member

          9  said she cannot identify an illegal van from a legal

         10  van. From Brooklyn Van Lines has taken steps to

         11  rectify that. All of our vans are recognized. Our

         12  vans are white with a green stripe, so there are no

         13  mistakes about it. And that is what makes the

         14  difference.

         15                 Thank you.

         16                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you very

         17  much.

         18                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Just

         19  briefly, Mr. Chairman.

         20                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Go ahead.

         21                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Two things.

         22  I take it you might want to -- what you might want

         23  to think about is how less valuable your work and

         24  your franchise and your activities would be if there

         25  were thousands upon thousands of vans without the
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          2  rigorous controls that you imply for your company,

          3  which is something you might want to think about,

          4  which is why people might want to talk about a cap.

          5                 Second, I understand the case to be

          6  about regulating and licensing and that is what the

          7  court said the Council cannot do. The courts were

          8  silent on the notion of a cap, and it seems to me

          9  that that is why the Chair and this Council has

         10  moved in this direction. So, I am not so sure that

         11  you, you cite your authority as if you know that to

         12  be the case, I would disagree with you 100 percent.

         13  We absolutely have the power to put a cap on based

         14  on -- if you are talking about the Supreme Court

         15  case. I am talking about the New York State Supreme

         16  Court case. The other theory about the 14th

         17  Amendment, we will cross that bridge when we come to

         18  it. But basically we are not regulating or

         19  licensing, we are just putting a cap, leaving to the

         20  Administration, as the court suggested, the ability

         21  to license and regulate, if this were to proceed.

         22                 So, I don't think you should leave

         23  such a definitive impression, I think you are wrong.

         24                 MR. MELLOR: May I respond?

         25                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: Sure.
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          2                 MR. MELLOR: The court recognized, and

          3  I think quite accurately, that under the enabling

          4  act, provision 85 little v, that final

          5  administrative authority for the issuance of

          6  applications, approval of applications for commuter

          7  vans was vested in an administrative agency in the

          8  Executive Branch.

          9                 If you put a cap in place and it is

         10  50 vans, the 51st van is off limits to that agency.

         11                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: It doesn't

         12  work that way. There are rules and regulations for

         13  how you license food vendors. We set the number,

         14  okay? So, if this theory is you set a number, the

         15  rules and regulations, how to, what you qualify, how

         16  you get regulated, how you get authorized, all the

         17  prerogative of the administration. I am not saying

         18  it is good or bad, but I am telling you, you are

         19  wrong to leave the impression or to walk away from

         20  here believing we don't have the power to cap. We do

         21  it in many, many areas.

         22                 MR. MELLOR: But none of those areas

         23  are subject to this provision of the enabling act.

         24  This enabling act governs specifically commuter vans

         25  and that is your problem.
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          2                 COUNCIL MEMBER DiBRIENZA: They are

          3  still free to authorize and regulate in any way they

          4  see fit. We are free to cap the number.

          5                 Thank you.

          6                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: As I said to the

          7  Commissioner before, this is only a lower court

          8  decision. Let's not get excited. Supreme Court, an

          9  important court, and there are two other courts here

         10  that have to make a decision, and as you may know

         11  the City Council hasn't been served yet with the

         12  notice so we still have time to appeal as well.

         13                 Thank you very much.

         14                 MR. MELLOR: Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: And to respond to

         16  Mr. Cummins, and to Mr. Ricketts, I want you to

         17  know, I do know your Brooklyn Van Lines, and we are

         18  clearly identified, and I have no problems as far as

         19  I know, I haven't seen any reports from TLC that you

         20  are a problem, and that is what we are saying. We

         21  are saying to you, and that is what we want, we want

         22  to tell you that we want to encourage the business,

         23  we want to encourage people to do what you are

         24  doing, but to do it up to a point, because after

         25  that point, after a certain number, illegals take
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          2  over and it just undermines your business as well.

          3                 So, we are there to protect your and

          4  public transportation. Thank you.

          5                 Okay, we are going to move along and

          6  in 15 minutes I have to end this because there is

          7  another Committee that has to go in here, and I have

          8  to go.

          9                 Mr., and I hope I pronounce it right,

         10  Kwok Ng, two Mr. Ng's. It is Kwok Hang Ng, are they

         11  here? Or Lee Min Zhang. They are not here. Okay,

         12  they are here. Do you want to identify yourself for

         13  the record?

         14                 Why don't you, instead of doing the

         15  translation, why don't you just speak about what you

         16  want to say. Go ahead, identify yourself for the

         17  record.

         18                 INTERPRETER: (Not identified) he is

         19  applying for a commuter van license right now.  Jon

         20  Chu Ng, that is his name. He is speaking on behalf

         21  of the Chinese American immigrant community. He is

         22  saying that a lot of new immigrants who come to New

         23  York City do not know how to ride on the subway or

         24  where to go or where to stop and they rely heavily

         25  on the commuter van transportation.
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          2                 And the majority of the people who

          3  ride on the commuter vans are new immigrants who

          4  come to the United States recently. He said that he

          5  has spoken with some illegal van drivers in his

          6  neighborhood and he asked them why you have to

          7  operate illegally and the reason is that they

          8  cannot, they don't know how to apply for a license

          9  legally and he feels that if more licensing can be

         10  granted to these new immigrant communities, they

         11  will not operate illegally. They will legally

         12  operate their services.

         13                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you very

         14  much.

         15                 Mr. Ott.

         16                 MR. OTT: Thank you. I will be quick.

         17  My name is Ed Ott, and I am a director of public

         18  policy for the New York City Central Labor Council,

         19  and I am reading a statement on behalf of our

         20  president Brian McLaughlin.

         21                 The New York City Central Labor

         22  Council is here in support of our affiliated

         23  organizations, Transport Workers Local 100, and its

         24  President Willie James.

         25                 Public transportation is designed to
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          2  serve two purposes, first it is designed to allow

          3  access to all parts of the City at an affordable

          4  cost. This City has long understood that an urban

          5  transportation system required public revenues in

          6  order to achieve affordability. Much of that public

          7  revenue comes from the business sector.

          8                 In return, the business sector gains

          9  from this second purpose of public transportation,

         10  which is to promote the efficient movement of people

         11  and goods through the City.

         12                 Our public transportation was an

         13  innovation that propelled this City to the top of

         14  the commercial market in the nation. It is a

         15  terrific example of public/private partnership that

         16  works.

         17                 The issue of commuter vans, legal and

         18  illegal has gone on too long. The inability of the

         19  City of New York to enforce existing regulations has

         20  resulted in an underground transportation system

         21  that has exasperated traffic along bus routes and

         22  endangered Transit Workers and the public.

         23                 The result in traffic obstructions

         24  and delays undermine the efficiency and safety of

         25  the system. Even among those van services that are
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          2  technically legal, the vehicles are poorly

          3  maintained and the workers receive substandard

          4  compensation and inferior safety and health

          5  conditions.

          6                 Some van advocates claim that vans

          7  fill a need of a transportation gap in underserved

          8  areas, but in fact the vans attempt to aggressively

          9  compete against public supported routes and

         10  rationally served areas. If the van advocates have

         11  their way, they will reduce public transportation to

         12  urban anarchy.

         13                 It is time to put a limit on the

         14  number of vans allowed to operate on our City

         15  streets. Those that are allowed to operate must meet

         16  standards of public safety and be responsible

         17  employers. Prevailing wages, health benefits,

         18  pensions and bathroom facilities should be required

         19  at a minimum. We believe that the number of vans

         20  allowed to operate at any given time should not

         21  exceed 450. Indeed any authorization by the City

         22  should be accompanied by a zero tolerance policy

         23  against an illegal or improper operation.

         24                 The New York City Central Labor

         25  Council urges the New York City Council to enact
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          2  legislation setting the cap at 450 van

          3  authorizations and to review these authorizations

          4  every two years.

          5                 Mr. Chairman, thank you for your

          6  time.

          7                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay, I am going to

          8  call up three at a time. Again, we are going to end

          9  by 1:30, so what I don't get to, I will just make

         10  part of the record.

         11                 Lateef Ajala, Peter Wong, Irwine

         12  Clarke. Are they here? Let's go. Sit down over

         13  there. Start.

         14                 MR. WONG: My name is Peter Wong, a

         15  representative of the Chinese community of commuter

         16  vans.

         17                 I would like to say, because we don't

         18  want the cap put on the bill, because we could get a

         19  fair competition.  And we want to, my industry is

         20  getting bigger and bigger, but right now the

         21  problems just only target the commuter van, the

         22  costs in the City. Right now we have the mini van

         23  industry, and they have a dollar run service, so we

         24  just want a government concern and that's it.

         25                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you very
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          2  much.

          3                 Go ahead, next. Identify yourself for

          4  the record.

          5                 MR. CLARKE: My name Irwin Clarke, I

          6  am the Director of the Caribbean Immigrant Services,

          7  representing the change in faces of the industry

          8  that we represent today. And in responding to my

          9  Council Member Archie Spigner, community boards,

         10  yes, they represent us, but no more in that, they

         11  are out of touch. There can be no cap on this

         12  industry that seeks to enhance our community; and

         13  furthermore, it is all about employing ourselves,

         14  our community and our families.

         15                 The community van industry is here to

         16  stay, it is a viable alternative. People are not

         17  forced to use it, it is a choice. It is about

         18  professionalism, it is about delivery of service,

         19  and it is also about not taking from a system but

         20  contributing to a system.

         21                 Thank you very much.

         22                 MS. BARNES: My name is Maureen

         23  Barnes, and I just want to make it known that I am a

         24  new authorized van operator. And if anyone knows

         25  about my profession, it is one of the highest paid
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          2  professions in the United States at this time, so

          3  the question is, why then, me having such a high

          4  profession, want to be an operator? The issue is

          5  business ownership.

          6                 I stood here and I listened to the

          7  argument of the union and the Council, with due

          8  respect, but I think one major point which everyone

          9  is missing is van operators are not employees, they

         10  are all business owners. So, some things which may

         11  apply to employees may not apply to business owners.

         12  That is the first thing.

         13                 But the other thing which I am a

         14  little bit appalled by is that the main issue for

         15  this hearing was somewhat diverted. The point is the

         16  issue here was to speak specifically about the cap,

         17  and of course we all diverted into areas of public

         18  safety and all, which I believe need to be

         19  addressed, but maybe at a different setting.

         20                 But if we were to read the language

         21  of the law, as it is, it has the potential of

         22  totally eliminating the industry. And this is why I

         23  am saying this. At the end of this year, we all know

         24  that a lot of operators are up, their licenses will

         25  be up, and they have to reapply for new licenses,
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          2  which means that if a cab is placed on certain

          3  areas, there is a potential that there may not be a

          4  license at all when renewal time comes up. So, the

          5  way it is written right now it has the potential of

          6  not capping the industry but of totally eliminating

          7  the industry. And that is something which I believe

          8  should be thought about before it goes into action.

          9                 Thank you.

         10                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you. And by

         11  the way, it does not affect renewals. It has nothing

         12  to do with it. This cap has nothing to do with

         13  renewals.

         14                 Tony Luo,  Dawn Johnson-McGregor and

         15  Hubert Johnson.

         16                 I will ask that we have the other two

         17  speak, so if you are doing a translation, why don't

         18  you just, instead of them speaking first, ask them

         19  what they want to say and you can say it on their

         20  behalf, okay? Meanwhile I can get the other two. Go

         21  ahead. Will you take the microphone, Ma'am? Identify

         22  yourself for the record.

         23                 MS. JOHNSON-MCGREGOR: Hi. Good

         24  morning -- good afternoon, I should say. My name is

         25  Dawn Johnson-McGregor.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Speak into the

          3  microphone.

          4                 MS. JOHNSON-MCGREGOR: Good afternoon.

          5  My name is Dawn Johnson-McGregor. Myself and all of

          6  my clients do rely on the van services for parts of

          7  Queens and Rockaway, and the Ozone Park area, which

          8  I would like to see in the future that we do expand

          9  in that business area.

         10                 I would just like to say that I wish

         11  for us to be able to have more van services. As

         12  everybody else is, I am also a commuter in the

         13  Queens and other areas of New York City.

         14                 Thank you.

         15                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Go ahead, next.

         16  Identify yourself for the record.

         17                 MR. JOHNSON: Good afternoon. I am

         18  Hubert Johnson, a commuter in the Queens area, and

         19  also a life insurance agent. Now, I can be described

         20  as an observer and I have been listening quite

         21  attentively to what you have been saying so far, and

         22  in my view I personally don't think that there

         23  should be a cap on the van industry, because if we

         24  are committed to a level playing field, and that

         25  everybody should have an equal opportunity to
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          2  arrange and organize a very, very useful service to

          3  those people within the areas where this service is

          4  needed, then I think we should not try to put a cap

          5  on the industry but at least to try to weed out

          6  illegal operators, and also get all of these

          7  licensed persons within the industry to help to do

          8  so. It is really to get the full picture of what is

          9  really happening out there, because if you are not

         10  really at that level, where those people are using

         11  this kind of service, or to do what I would consider

         12  a very informative survey of the whole picture and

         13  how very useful this is to these young

         14  entrepreneurs. People come into this country to make

         15  good for themselves. People are really serious about

         16  making a mark and trying to acquire some form of

         17  work or some form of employment for them and their

         18  families, then when we try to put a cap on this

         19  industry, we are limiting their chance of progress,

         20  and that is not what I think we are here for today.

         21                 Thank you for your time.

         22                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Okay.

         23                 Go ahead.

         24                 INTERPRETER: (Not identified). Okay,

         25  this is Mr. Tony Luo. He is representing the Chinese
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          2  American Association of Community Transportation. He

          3  is an immigrant and he has been living and working

          4  in the Chinese American community in Brooklyn,

          5  Eighth Avenue, and he strongly feels that a great

          6  need for more commuter vans between Flushing and

          7  Brooklyn, since both of these communities are

          8  booming Chinese American communities, and he cited

          9  an example that the line between Flushing and

         10  Manhattan and Chinatown, right now there is only one

         11  line running and it is very unfair for the people

         12  riding, for the consumers, because it is just one

         13  line running. The price has been going up and he

         14  feels that that is very unfair. And if more licenses

         15  can be granted to our commuter vans, so that more

         16  people can open up their company running between

         17  that line, between Chinatown and Flushing, then it

         18  is more fair for the consumers and the price,

         19  because due to healthier competitions the fare of

         20  that transportation will decrease and he feels

         21  strongly that more needs should be -- he feels that

         22  the caps on the number of vans should not be

         23  granted. He feels that the City Council can regulate

         24  on fronting license, but not capping the number of

         25  vans.
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          2                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you.

          3                 Our next, and these will be the last

          4  three speakers that I have, and the rest of the

          5  speakers, we will put on the record that they were

          6  here in opposition, because that is what I have, I

          7  think they are all here in opposition.

          8                 Dialgo Delgado. Leopold Thompson, and

          9  Alando Clarke. Go ahead and identify yourself for

         10  the record.

         11                 MR. DELGADO: Good afternoon. My name

         12  is Delago Delgado, I am representing the Mexican

         13  community in Queens.

         14                 This bill will prevent my community

         15  from getting much needed transportation we need in

         16  our community. I say thank you very much.

         17                 MR. CLARKE: I am Alando Clarke. I am

         18  the President of Rosedale Van Lines, one of the

         19  newly authorized van companies.

         20                 I am against 544-A, in that for 14

         21  years I have been associated in one way or another

         22  with the van industry. I was a rider, I became a

         23  driver, now I am an owner. If this cap was in effect

         24  two months ago, I would not have had the opportunity

         25  to now be able to, instead of just being a driver
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          2  for the rest of my life, be an entrepreneur, where I

          3  can look to the future to expand on a business that

          4  I started from the ground up.

          5                 If a cap is in place, it is simply

          6  saying that other drivers who are presently out

          7  there will always have to be drivers, because there

          8  is no opportunity for them to grow and to establish

          9  themselves as a legitimate business. I think you

         10  ought to take a good look at this cap, and don't let

         11  it go through.

         12                 Thank you.

         13                 MS. THOMPSON: My name is Rita

         14  Thompson, and I represent my husband Leopold

         15  Thompson. This van industry is a serious business.

         16  This van industry service is very useful for

         17  hard-working people that cannot afford a car so they

         18  depend on the vans, while most of them do work and

         19  have young children to be taken care of by the

         20  sitter. So, the vans will take them to their

         21  babysitter, wait for them awhile and take them to

         22  the train for them to go to work on time. The vans

         23  mean a great deal in the winter morning and nights

         24  to get around safely from mugging, and many of the

         25  people living eight blocks or more from their bus
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          2  say it is impossible for them to get to the bus and

          3  the van would pick them up from their homes and the

          4  babysitter would drop them off and pick them up in

          5  the evenings from the train station back to the

          6  babysitter.

          7                 We at the community would appreciate

          8  if the vans industry would continue this service for

          9  the poor working people. Try to get rid of the

         10  illegal vans and help them to get the correct

         11  requirements and for them to be legal. Legal vans

         12  try to provide a stop on the road. The road is for

         13  everyone to use. Everyone has to pay taxes like you.

         14  By the way, the good God of Heaven said "by the

         15  sweat of your brow you must eat bread" and why not

         16  try to help the needy?

         17                 Thank you.

         18                 CHAIRPERSON DEAR: Thank you very

         19  much.

         20                 This meeting is concluded, but I just

         21  want the record to indicate that there is a Poyee

         22  Chill, Karl Kellman, Fatai Lasisi, Leon Salman, Leon

         23  Cooke, Thelma Williams, Don Glymph, and Donald

         24  Blagrove. If these people would come to the next

         25  hearing, because we will have other hearings, we

             Legal-Ease Court Reporting Services, Inc. (800) 756-3410

                                                            113

          1  COMMITTEE ON TRANSPORTATION

          2  will allow them to speak first.

          3                 On the record, I will make that part

          4  of the hearing, that they were here and in

          5  opposition to this bill.

          6                 Thank you.

          7                 This meeting is adjourned.

          8                 (Hearing concluded at 1:30 p.m.)
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